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December 6, 2012

His Excellency Governor John Lynch
and
The Honorable Council

Dear Governor and Councilors:
REQUESTED ACTION

Holding of a public hearing and passage of a Resolution entitled: A RESOLUTION
UNDER RSA 162-1:9 WITH RESPECT TO THE REFINANCING OF COMMERCIAL
FACILITIES BY THE BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY FORTHE MONADNOCK.
COMMUNITY HOSPITAL. (For the text of the requested Resolution see Tab #1 below this
letter of transmittal.)

The Authority respectfully requests that you hold a hearing, and, if you consider such
action appropriate, make the statutory findings under RSA 162-1:9 with respect to the proposed
issuance of Refunding Revenue Bonds (The Monadnock Community Hospital Issue), Series
2013 (the *“Bonds”) in an amount not to exceed $28,000,000 by the Authority and the loan of the
proceeds of the Bonds to The Monadnock Community Hospital (the “Hospital™) to refinance
construction and improvements to commercial facilities in Peterborough, New Hampshire. The
Authority recommends your favorable action and submits in support thereof the following
materials with item numbers the same as the tab numbers for the attached documents.

1. A suggested form of resolution for adoption by the Governor and Council.

2. A letter from Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., bond counsel,
explaining these transactions.

3. Materials with respect to the Hospital and the facility consisting of (a) a Form BFA-1
submitted by the Hospital and (b) the Hospital’s most recent audited financial
statements for its fiscal vears ended September 30,2011 and September 30, 2010,
audited by Baker, Newman & Noyes LLC.

4. The commitment letter from TD Bank, N.A. as to its purchase of the Bonds.

5. Information from the New Hampshire Department of Employment Security as to
unemployment in the Peterborough, New Hampshire area.

6. The proposed form of LOAN AND SECURITYAGREEMENT for the Bonds.
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7. The resolution adopted by the Authority at 1ts November 19, 2012 meeting.

8. A summary of required statutory findings of the Governor and Council with reference
to materials supporting each finding.

The Authority will be glad to furnish any additional documentation and information
which you may request.

Respectfully submitted,

BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

QuAsl

/ Jack Donovan
Executive Director

7682445v.1



A RESOLUTION UNDER RSA 162-1:9 WITH RESPECT TO THE FINANCING
OF COMMERCIAL FACILITIES BY THE BUSINESS FINANCE
AUTHORITY FOR MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
IN PETERBOROUGH

WHEREAS, the Governor and Council have received from the Business Finance
Authority (the “Authority”) its written recommendation that the Governor and Council make
certain findings and a determination pursuant to RSA 162-1:9 with respect to the refinancing of
commercial facilities (the “Facilities”) for The Monadnock Community Hospital (the “Hospital™)
in Peterborough, by the Authority’s issue of Refunding Revenue Bonds (The Monadnock
Community Hospital Issue) Series 2013 (the “Bonds”) in an amount not to exceed an aggregate
of $28,000,000 under RSA 162-] (the “Act”);

WHEREAS, the Governor and Council have received all the documentation and
information with respect to the transaction which they have requested; and

WHEREAS, further action by the Authority with respect to the transaction is subject to
the passage of this resolution and cannot be taken until after its passage;

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

Section 1. Findings. On the basis of the Authority’s recommendation and the
documentation and information received by the Governor and Council, and after a public
hearing, the Governor and Council find:

(a) Special Findings:

(1) The Bonds will be used to: (i) current refund the outstanding Business
Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire Revenue Bond, The
Monadnock Community Hospital Issue (2009); (ii) current refund the
outstanding Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Monadnock Community Hospital
Issue) Series 2007 and (iii) pay certain costs associated with the issuance
of the Bonds.

(2) The operation of the Facilities will create and preserve employment
opportunities directly and indirectly within the State of New Hampshire
{the “State™).
(b) General Findings:

{1 The Projects and the proposed refinancing thereof are feasible;

(2) The Hospital has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate the
Facilities successfully;
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Section 2.

The Agreement contains provisions so that under no circumstances will
the Authority be obligated directly or indirectly to pay Project costs, debt
service or expenses of operation, maintenance and upkeep of the Facilities
except from proceeds of the Bonds or from funds received under the
Agreement, exclusive of funds received thereunder by the Authority for its
OWn use;

The Agreement does not purport to create any debt of the State with
respect to the Facilities, other than a special obligation of the Authority
acting on behalf of the State under the Act; and

The proposed refinancing of the Projects by the Authority and the
operation and use of the Facilities will serve one or more needs and
implement one or more purposes set forth in RSA 162-1:1, will preserve or
increase the social or economic prosperity of the State and one or more of
its political subdivisions, and will promote the general welfare of the
State’s citizens.

Ultimate Finding and Determination. The Governor and Council find that

the proposed refinancing, operation and use of the Facility will serve a public use and provide a
public benefit, and the Governor and Council determine that the Authority’s refinancing of the
Project will be within the policy of, and the authority conferred by, the Act.

Section 3.

Approval. The Governor and Council approve the Authority’s taking such

further action under the Act with respect to the transaction as may be required.



Section 4.

Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage. Passed and

Agreed to December 19, 2012.

7682962v.1

Governor John Lynch

Councilor Raymond S. Burton

Councilor Daniel St. Hilaire

Councilor Christopher T. Sununu

Councilor Raymond J. Wieczorek

Councilor David K. Wheeler
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December 6, 2012

His Excellency Governor John Lynch
and
The Honorable Council

Dear Governor and Councilors:

In this transaction the Business Finance Authority (the “Authority™) will issue Refunding
Revenue Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to $28,000,000 (the “Bonds™) and lend
the proceeds of the Bonds to The Monadnock Community Hospital (the “Borrower™) to refinance
construction and improvements to commercial facilitics in Peterborough, New Hampshire. The
Bonds are being issued entirely to refinance existing debt.

The Bonds will be issued in a direct placement pursuant to a Loan and Security
Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and among the Authority, the Borrower and TD Bank, N.A. as
Purchaser (the “Purchaser”). The Agreement represents a general obligation of the Borrower,
secured by a pledge of its gross receipts. The Agreement will contain covenants and agreements
on the part of the Borrower. In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Borrower will
grant to the Purchaser a lien on gross revenues and other collateral deemed appropriate by the
Purchaser. The Borrower will also grant a mortgage to the Purchaser with respect to certain real
property of the Borrower.

The Bonds will be issued as tax exempt bonds bearing interest at a variable rate based on
one-month LIBOR. The Bonds will amortize based on a 30 year schedule but be subject to
payment after 10 years and to other mandatory and optional prepayment as set forth in the
Agreement,

As in all transactions under RSA 162-1, neither the Authority’s money nor other public
funds will be used to pay the Bonds. Provisions appropriate for achieving this result, as required
by RSA 162-1, are contained in the Agreement.

Sincerely yours,

Miniz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C.

Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C.

BOSTON { WASHINGTON | NEW YORK | STAMFORD | LOS ANGELES | SAN DIEGO | LONDON | SaN FRANCISCO



If you have any gquestions about this application or the BFA's bond program, please catl the
BFA's offices at (603) 415-0190. If you need more space for any guestion, please attach addi-
tional sheets.

Name of Applicant _The Monadnock Community Hospital

Address 452 Old Sireet Road

City/Tewn Peterborough State NH Zip_ 03458

Contact__ Richard D, Scheinblum Title CFQ Phone 603-924-1738

Name and address of owner of project {(if different)

Names and addresses of lessees of project (if any)

Amount of bond issue § 28M - §32M

Address of project site:

Briefly describe the project:
This is a refinancing of 2 bonds with an outstanding Principal or $27.4M as of 10/1/2013.
In addition, there are 3 SWAPS with a negative mark to market of approximately $4M - $4.5M.

Bonds will be {ssued either variable or fixed. If fixed, the face value will be hire to account for
the SWAP buyout. Please refer to attached TD Bank proposal letter dated 9/6/2012.

Fstimated
Cost Size
Land Acquisition $ acres
Building Acquisition  § sq. ft.
Building Construction § sq. ft.
Building Renovation  $ sq. ft.

Eqoipment Acquisition $
Cost of Bond Issuance $ _200,000
Refinance Existing Debt $_27.4M - $32M
Other (describe)

Describe the effect of the project on the environment___ N/A




| When do you expect the project to begin? N/A
@ When de you expect the project to be completed? N/A
How many jobs will be created or preserved by the project?
Created Preserved
@ Describe the types of jobs created or preserved, their wage aud salary levels and, if applicable,
wlien the jebs will be created: N/A
v Names and addresses of contractors and subcontractors for the project: N/A
o
} 3 Describe the Applicant (and if applicable the owner and the lessees). Include a brief history of
| the Applicant, its principal produets, and its custoniers:
General Acuote Care Hospital
0
! Briefly describe the background of the Applicant's (and if applicable the cwner's and lessees') key
; management personnel: See Attached (Executive Team Biographies)
o
Is the Applicant an equal cpportunity employer? _ ves  _, the owner? , the lessee?
Please provide any other information of which you believe the BFA should be aware in consider-
ing this application: The Monadnock Community Hospital hag issued it’s last two bond is-
@ sues through the BFA.
| @
| will promptly advise the BFA of any change in the foregoing information, or of
% thformation tkat may become available as plans for the project progress.
@ — /o1 e

heittblum Date
Vige President,"Hihance and Chief Financial Officer




Executive Team Biographies

Peter L. Gasline, Chief Executive Officer — Mr. Gosline joined Monadnock
Community Hospital in March 1998. He has over 25 years of experience work-
ing as both employee and consultant in a variety of healthcare settings, includ-
ing a regional hospital association, four community hospitals, & psychiatric
hospital, and a network of three hospitals. Mr. Gosline received his Bachelor
Degree from Tufts University, a Masters Degree in Community Health from the
University of Rochester, and an M.B.A. from Cornell University, He and his _
wife, Connie, have four grown children and reside in Peterberough, NH.

Michael G. Bload, VP of Human Resources - Michas! has been direct-

ing MCH Human Resources since 1999 and also provides administrative over-
sight of the Medical Library, Engineering and Security Services, Food Services,
and Environmental Services. Michael obtained his Bachelors Degree at the
University of New Hampshire and has a MBA from Franklin Pierce, He was
certified as a Senior Professional in Human Resources by HRCI, has served as
President of the New Hampshire Healthcare Human Resources Association,
has been recognized by the American Hospital Association and serves as an
advisor fo the Human Capital Executive Research Board. He lives with his
family in Jaffrey, NH.

Laura Gingras, VP of Philanthropy and Community Relations- Laura
joined MCH in 2000 and has 15 years of experience in health care develop-
menl and communications. She earned her undergraduate degree in Account-
ing from Glasshoro State University and holds a Masler's Degree in Manags-
ment from Emmanuel Gellege. Laura is also holds a CPA cerlification, She s
past President of the Peterborough Retary Club, past Chair of the Greater
Peterborough Chamber of Commerce Board, and a member of several area
boards. Laura lives in Peterborough.

Vicki Loughery, Chief Nursing Officer

Vicki joined MCH in February of 201t. She has 26 years of Nursing experience
in a variety of settings, and currenlly holds a Bacheler's Degree in Nursing and
a Master's Degree in Adult Education and Human Resource Development.
She has previous management experience in Acute Care, Home Care, Re-
search and Education as well as a Clinical Nursing Instructor. Vicki resides in
Wilton with her husband Joe and has one daughter, Kristen, who resides in Mi-
ami, Fl.

Andrew Macdonald, VP of Ancillary and Planning Services -Andy joined
MCH as Direcior of Rehab and Wsliness in February of 2000 and during his
tenure, acquired a Master's Degree in Management from New England Col-
lege. He is the Executive Sponsor for all LEAN activities as well as overseeing
Strategic Planning Activities and the recent MFP expansion. He lives in Peter-
horough with his wite Janice and their four children.

Barbara Quealy, VP, Physician Services

Barbara joined the Leadership Team at MCH in December, 2010. Prior fo that
date, she served as the Adminislrator for a large multi-specialiy private practice
in Derry, NH. Barbara is a Registerad Nurse with a Bachelor's Degree in Eng-
lish/Communications from Boston College and has more than 15 years in
Healthcare |eadership including acute care, ambulatory care and physician
practice management. She received her Masters Degras in Business Admini-




strafion frem Franklin Plerce in Rindge, NH. She and her husband Paul have
iwo sens and reside in New Boston,

Carol Roosa, Chief information Officer - Carai joined MCH in May of 2008,
relocating from Wallkill, NY. She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Managemeant
Information Systems, from Pace University in NY, and was most recently the
Director of Business and Publishing Applications for Ottaway Newspapers {the
Local Media Division of Tow Jones). Previously, Carol was the Director of -
Technology for a Health Maintenance Organization in NY. She and her hus-
band, Paul, have two children. Their son Kevin is in college and living in

NY; Carol, Paul and their dgughter, Kylie, live in Peterborough.

Richard D. Scheinblum, Chief Financial Officer - Rich has been with MCH
for 7 years, as Controllar, Director of Peri-operative Services and now as Chief
Financial Officer. He obtained his BS in Business Administration from the Uni-
versity of Connecticut, and his MBA from Plymouth State Cellege. Rich’s work
experience includes a mental health facllity, a children’s hospital, an insurance
company and a rehabilitation facility. He resides in Dublin, with his two young
50Ns.

Philip 3, Yuocolo, MD, Chief Medical Officer — joined MCH in February of
2011 afier serving as the Chief Executive Officer of the Fairmont Medical Cen-
tar — Mayo Health System for two years. A practicing General and Vascular
surgeon far 22 years, Dr. Yuocolo received a BS degree In Biology from Ford-
ham University in the Bronx, New York in 1979, and an MDD degree from the
State University of New York at Syracuse in 1983. He completed & five-year
residency in Genera! Surgety and a year of research in Cardiovascular Physi-
ology at University Hospital in Syracuse in 1988. Dr. Vuocolo lives in Peterbor-
ough with his wife, Michele “Shelley”, a famiiy Nurse Practitioner, and daughter
Victoria. Phil also has 4 children and & grandchiidren kiving in New York and
New Jersey.

kiamipro\ondsiappnonprofil
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Certified Public Accountants

The Monadnock Community Hospital
Audited Financial Statements

Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010
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Independent Auditors' Report

Audited Financial Statements:
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Statements of Operations
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
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BAKER |NEWMAN |NOYES

Certfied Suond Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Beard of Trustees
The Monadnock Community Hospital

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Monadnock Community Hospital (the Hospital)
as of Septemher 30, 2011 and 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the respousibility of the Hospital's
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, en a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting vrinciples used and significanf estimates made by management, ag well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our gpinion.

Tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fzirly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Monadnock Community Hospital as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its

operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

&J@r '\Lﬂﬂ\ﬂﬂ?%ﬂs

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
Jangary 19, 2012

Baker Newman & Neyes, LLC

1



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liahilities;
Accounts payable and acerued expenses
Accrued payroll and amounts withheld
Estimated third-party payor settlements (note 3)

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations

Total current labilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations,
less current portion (note §)

Interest rate swap agreements (notes 8 and 16)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (notes 1 and 12)
Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net asscts (note 9)

Permanently restricted net assets {note 9)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes,

2011 2010
$ 3,456,447 § 5,521,892
2,635,352 2,674,292
4612,944 2,962,049
1.050.994  _1.179,198
11,755,737 12,337,431
27,852,975 28,903,968
4097901 3,376,334
43706,613 44,617,733
37,498,743 33,688,418
1,357,888 3,126,586
6956317 _6.904.665
45,812,048 43,719,669
389,519,561 $88,337,402



THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Unrestricted revenue and other suppori:
Net pafient service revenue (notes 3 and 10)
Other revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total unrestricted revenue and other support

Expenses (note 14);
Salaries and benefits (note 11)
Supplies and other
Insurance
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation and amortization {note 7)
Interest (note &)
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax (note 3)

Total expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income (note 6)
Unrestrictad contributions, net of fundraising expenses
Other expense (note 8)

Nonoperating gains, net

Excess of revenues, support and nonoperating
galns OVer eXpenses

Net unrealized gains on investments (note §)

Deerease in fair value of interest rate swap agreements,
gualifying as hedpges (note 8)

Net assets released from restrictions used
to purchase property and squipment

Increase in unrestricted net assets

See acconmpanying notes.

2011 2010
$71,948,625 $69,662,406
2,230,228 2,314,637
105,541 124,525
74,284,394 72,101,568
37,586,517 37,043,591
22,667,561 22,704,049
463,853 686,503
3,742,600 3,335,006
4,866,535 4,333,432
1,006,716 860,327
3,168.593  _3.461215
73.502.775  72.428.123
781,619 (326,555)
932,850 713,874
479,963 1,401,383
(280.868) (44,914)
1131.945 2.070.843
1,013,564 1,744,288
28,563 675,523
(721,567)  (1,434,260)
2,589.765 1,935,289
$.3.810325 $.2,920840
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Unrcstricted net assets:
Excess of revenues, support and nonoperating
gaing over expenses
Net unrealized gains on investments (note 6)
Decrease in fair value of interest rate swap agreements (note §)
Net assets released from restrictions used
to purchase property and equipment

Increase in unrestricted net assets
Teraporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions (note 5)
Net investment income (note 6)
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (note 9)
Net assets released from restrictions used to purchase
property and equipment
Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets
Permanently restricted net assets:
Coentributions
Net unrealized gains on perpetual trusts (note 6)
Increase in permanently restricted net assets
Increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.

2011

3
—_
<

|

$ 1,913,564 § 1,744,288

28,563 675,523
(721,567)  (1,434,260)
2,580.765 1935289
3,810,325 2,920,840
884,424 1,266,244
42,184 48272
(105,541)  (124,525)
(2.589,765)  (1.935,289)
(1,768,698)  (745,298)
77 517
51,575 152.628

51,652

2,093,279
43.719.669

$45,812.948

153,145
2,328,687
41.390,982

$43,710.669
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Realized and unrealized gains on investments, net
Interest rate swaps
Decrease in interest rate swap loan
Provisicn for bad delits
Restricted contributions and investment income

{Licrease) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Notes and cther receivables
Other assets

Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and amounts withheld
Due to/from third-party payors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds on sale of investments
Purchases of investments

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt and capital leasa obligations
Restricted contributions and investment inconie
Debt issuance costs

Net cash provided by Linancing activilies

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:
In 2010, the Hospital entered into capital Jease obligations
in the emount of $630,606,

I 2010, the Hosp!tal settled an existing interest rate swap agreernent

by issuing debt totaling $480,000 {see Note §).
These items are nof included m the above statements of cash flows.

See accompanying notes.

2011

I~

01

§ 2,093,279 § 2,328,687

4,866,535 4,333,432
363,369 -
(596,817)  (1,097,023)
721,567 1,564,483
(48,000) -
3,742,600 3,339,006
(926,685)  (1,315,033)
(4,137,428)  (3,026,560)
- 10,737
(123,525) (188,647)
(44,481) (232,655)
(802,349) 56,813
(13,014) (44,024)
(2,065,445) 725,717
(38,940) 135,457
1,650,895  _ 3,495,027
4,641,561 10,085,417

(8,511,606)

(10,979,612)

6,338,018 6,821,935
_(2.574,795) _(2,975,899)
(4,747,483)  (7,133,576)
(1,131,197) (955,997)
14256000 2,006,558
—(10.504)
294403 1,040,057
188,481 3,991,898

_ 937,331 5745433
$.9525.812 30737331
$_1006716 $__ 860,327




THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Description of Orpanization and Summary of Sionificant Accounting Policies

Organization

The Monadnock Community Hospital (the Hospital) is a not-for-profit, acute care hospital located in
Peterborough, New Hampshire.

In August 1997, the Hospital and Capital Region Health Care Corporation {CRHC) formalized an
agreement to affiliate for the pumpose of creating an integrated health care delivery network.
Accordingly, CRHC became the sole corporate member of the Hospital, effective October 1, 1967.
The accounts of CRHC and related affiliates were not included in the Hospital's financial statements.
This affiliation with CRHC was terminated during 2010. The members of the Hospital effective
February 1, 2010 are the glected and ex-officio members of the Board of Trustess.

The accounting peolicies that affect the more sigmficant elements of the financial statements are
summarized below;

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on an acerual basis of accounting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generatly accepted in
the United Siates of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements. Hstimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
doring the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant
areas which are affected by the use of estimates are the allowance for doubtful accounts and
contractual adjustments, the allowance for uncollectible pledges, estimated third-party payor
settlements and insurance reserves,

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all demand deposit accounts and investments with criginal
maturities of thres months or less when purchased, excluding assets limited as to use.

Acecounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from cutstanding
balances, Management provides for probahle uncollectible amounis through a charge to operations
and a credit to the allowance for doubtful acecounts based on its assessment of individual accounts and
historical adjustments. Balances that are still cutstanding after manapement has used reasonahle
collection efforts are written off through a charge to the allowance for doubtful accounts and a eredit
Lo accounts receivable.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies and pharnmaceuticals are carried at the lower of cost or market, Costs are
defermined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.
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THE MONADNOCEK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Description of Organization and Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies {Continned)

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements, designated assets
set aside by the Board of Trustecs, over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion,
subsequently nse for other purposes, and donor-restricted investments.

Investmenis

Investraents are carried af fair value in the accompanying balance sheets. The Hospital has recorded
net unrealized gains/losses on investments in the accompanying statements of operations and changes
in net assets as a component of the change in net assets, but not as a component of the excess of
revenues, support and nonoperating gains over expenses. Declines in fair value below the cost of
investinents are evaluated to determine if they are cother-than-temporary. If such declines are
determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment chargs is recognized within nonoperating
losses. Tealized gains and losses are determined on the specific identifieation method, however,
mutual fund realized gains and losses are deterinined on the average cost method.

Investment Policies

The Hospital's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of
invested assets with the objective of preserving eapital and maximizing returns. The invested assets
include endownient, specific purpose and board designated (uurestricted) funds.

Endowmaent funds are identified as permanent in nature, infended to provide support for current or
future operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with
disciplined longer-term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant,
reascnable, or probable events,

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the
doner or grantor. These funds have various interinediate/Tong-term time horizons associated with
specific identificd spending ohjectives.

Board designated funds have varicus intermediale/long-term time horizons asscciated with specific
spending objeetives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets s to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principe! and
income of the endowment funds over the long term. The Hospital tarpets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on ashieving its long-term relum objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Property and Equipment -

Property and equipment is stated at cost or, if denated, at fair value at the date of denation, less
accumulated depreciation. The Hospital's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements
and charge maintenance and repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the life of the
related assets. When assels are retired or disposed of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation
are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the accompanying
statements of operations.



THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Depreciation is computed uging the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives. Equipment under capital lease is amortized using the
straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
equipment, Costs of construction and acquisition of assets not yet placed in service are included in
capital improvements and no depreciation expense is recorded.

Bond fssuance Costs/ Origingl Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs are being amortized using an accelerated amortization method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. Bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the term of the bond using primarily the straipght-line method which is
not materially different than the level yield method.

Farned Time

The Hospital provides and accrues for paid time off for vacation, holiday and sick leave under an
earned time system for nonexempt employees, Hours earned, but not used, are capped and vested with
the employee.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assels

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors to a
spccified time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to
be maintained by the Hospital in perpetuity. Investment income, as well as realized and unrealized
gains from permanently restricted net assets, are available for various uses as prescribed by the
donors.

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Aecr (UPMIFA), the
Hospital considers the follewing factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds; (a) the duraticn and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of
the organization and the donor-restricted endowment find; {c) general economic conditions; (d) the
nogsible effect of inflation and deflation; (e} the expected total return from income and the
appreciation of investments; () other resources of the organization; and (g} the investment policies of
the organization.

Shending Policy for Appropriation of Asseis for Expenditure

Spending policies may be adopted by the Hospital, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding
for the supporit of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purciiasing power of the assefs is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The Hospital evaluates its spending policies on an annual basis.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Donor-Restricied Contributions

Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reporied at fair value at the date of receipt,
Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of the
receipt of the promise. All gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the
accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from
restrictions.  Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as
received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial statements.

Excess of Revenues, Support and Nonoperating Gains Over Expenses

The accompanying stztements of operations include excess of revenues, support and nouoperating
gains over cxpenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues,
support and nonoperating gains over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include net assets
released from restrictions used for the purposes of acquiring long-lived assets, net unrealized
gains/losses on investments and the changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements desmed
to be effective hedges.

Net Patienf Service Revenue

Net patient service revemue is reported at the estiinated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued ou an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in fiuture periods as final
seftlements arc determined. Changes in these estimates are reflected in the accompanying financial
statements in the year in which they occur. During 2011 and 2010, uet patient service revenue in the
accompanying statements of operations increased approximately $650,000 and $321,000, respectively,
due lo changes in prior year estimates. Services rendered to individuals from whom payment is
expected and ultimately not received is written off and included as part of the provision for bad debis.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 31% and 2%,
respectively, of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the year ended September 30, 2011, and
32%, and 3%, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2010, Laws and regulations governing
the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and suhject Lo interpretation. The Hospital believes
that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrengdoing, While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and repulations can be subject to [uture
government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory acticn including fines,
penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Activities directly associated with services related to acute and anciliary care services are considered
to be operating activities and are included as patient service revenue. Revenne which is not related to
patient medical cars and which is normal to the day-to-day operations of the Hospital is included in
other revenue.

10
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Description of Orprnization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial Assistance Program

The Hospital accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified as a financial
assistance patient by reference to certain established policies of the Hospital. Essentially, these
policies define the financial assistance program as those services for which no payment is anticipated,
In assessing a patient's inability to pay, the Hospilal utilizes federally established poverty guidelines.
The financial assislance program 1s measured based on the Hospital's established rates. These charges
are not included in met patient service revenue, The costs and expenses incurred in providing these
services are included in operating expenses.

Self-Insurance Programs

The Hospital self-insures its employee health and dental benefits and has estimated and accrued
amounts to meet its expected obligations under the program. The plan is administered by an insurance
company which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the
terms of the plan and the liabdity for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point
in time, The Hospital recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the Hogpital during
the year. Stop loss insurance coverage is in effect which mitigates the Hospital's exposure to loss on
an individual and aggregate basis. Estimated 1npaid claims, and those claimsg incurred but not
reported at September 30, 2011 and 2010, have been recorded as a liability of approximately $408,000
and $376,000, respectively,

Income Taxes

The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c}(3} of the Internal Revenus
Code {the Code} and is exempt from federal incomie taxes on rslated income pursuant to Section
501(2) of the Code. Management evaluated the Hospital's tax positions and concluded the Hospital
has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had
taken no uncertain tax positions that regnire adjustment to or disclosure in the accomnpanying financial
statements. Witk few exceptions, the Hospital is no longer subject lo tax examination by the U.S.
federal or state tax anthorities for years prior to 2008,

Advertising Costs

The Hospital expenses advertising costs as mcurred, and such costs totaled approximately $93,000 and
$86,000 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively,

Dertvatives and Hedping Activities

The interest rate swap agreements licld by the Hospital meet the definition of derivative instrurments
and, congequently, the Hospital is required to record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in Note 8. The Hospital is exposed to repayment loss equal to
any nel amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amounts) in the eveni of
nonperformance of the other parties to the swap agreements. However, the Hospital does not
anticipate nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other parties.

11



THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Deseription of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies { Continued)

Reclassifications

Certain 2010 amounts lrave been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2011 financial statements
presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Management of the Hospital evaluated events occuiring between the end of its fiscal year and
January 19, 2012, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Recent dceounting Pronouncements

In July 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Siandards Update
(ASU) No. 2011-07, Health Care Entities (Topic 954); Presentation arnd Disclosure of Patieni Service
Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allewance for Doubiful Accounts for Certain Health Care
Entities. The ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 31,
2011, with early adoption permitted, Changes to the presentation of the provision for bad debts
related to patient service revenue in the statement of operations is applied retrospectively to all prior
periods presented. The ASU states that a health care entity that recognizes significant amounts of
patient service revenue at the time the serviees are rendered even though it does not assess the patient's
ability to pay, must present bad debts as a reduction of net patient revenue and not as a separate item
in operating expenses. The change in presentation, as required by this guidance, is not expected to
significantly impact the Hospital's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In August 2010, the FASE issued ASU No. 2010-23 which provides amended guidance for the
measurement of charity care for disclosure, The objective of ASU No. 2010-23 is to reduce the
diversity in practice regarding the measurement basis used in the disclosure of charity care. To
accomplish that, this guidance requires that cost be used as the measurement basis for charity care
disclosure purposes and that cost be identified as the direct and indirect costs of providing the charity
care. This amendment also requires disclosure of the method used fo identify or determine such costs.
The ASU is effective for the year ending Scptember 30, 2012, The Hospital does not expect that the
impact of this accounting pronouncetnent will be significant to its financial statcments.

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU No, 2010-24 which addresses the diversity in the accounting
for medical malpractice and similar liabilities and their related anticipated insurance recoveries by
health care entities that mostly have nelted insurance recoveries against the accrued liability, although
some have presented the anticipated insnrance recovery and the liability on a gross basis. The
amendments to Topic 954 clarify that a health care entity should not net insurance recoverics against 2
related claim liability; the amount of the claim liability should be determined without consideration of
insurance recoveries. This ASU is effective for the Hospital for the fiscal year ending September 30,
2012. The Hospital does not expect that the impact of this pronouncement will be significant to its
financial statements.



THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of estimated confractual allowances and allowances for doubtful
accounts, Accounts receivable consists of the following at September 30:

011 2010
Accounts receivable $12,960,501  $12,390,923
Estimated contractual allowances (4,155,226)  (4,707,045)
Estimated allowance for doubiful accounts (3578746 (2,852.177)

$ 5226529 % 4,831.701

Estimated Third-Party Settlements

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Hospital at
amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major
third-party payors follows:

Medicare

The Hospital was granted critical access hospital {CAH) designation on December 27, 2004, As a
result of this designation, the Hospital is entitled to cost-based reimbursement {rom Medicare for
services provided to Medicare beneficiaries. Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare
program beneficiaries are paid uander a cost reimbursement methodology, Outpatient services are paid
based on a combination of rate schedules and reimbursed cost. The Hospital is reimbursed for cost
reimbursable items at an inferim rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost
reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary., The Hospital's
Medicare cost reports have been settled through September 30, 2008.

Medicaid

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed vinder a
cost reimbursement methodology subject to certain limitations. The Hospital is reimbursed at an
interim rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual costs reported by the Hospital
and andits thereof by the State of New Hampslrire Division of Audit. The Hospital's Medicaid cost
reports have been {inal settled through September 30, 2008,

Antherm

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Anthem subscribers are reimbursed at submitted charges
less & discount withholding or through a per diem or fee schedule, The amounis paid 1o the Hospital
are not subject to any retroactive adjustments.

13
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Estimated Third-Party Settlements {Continned)

Other

tThe Hospital has alse entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment o the Hospital under these agreements
includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, per diems and discounts from established

charges,

The Hospital has made a provision in the financial slatements for estimated final seltlements to be
paid as a result of the refroactive prevision for third-party reimbursement programs,

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and Medicaid Disproporfionate Share

Under the State of New Hampshire's (ax code, the State imposes a Meadicaid Enhancement Tax (MET)
equal to 5,5% of the Hospital's net patient service revenues, with certain exclusions, The amount of
tax incurred by the Hospital for fiscal 201! and 2010 was $3,168,993 and $3,461,215, respectively,
The Hospital has accrued $608,466 in MET at September 30, 2011, Pror to 2010, the MET was
offset by disproportionate share payments of identical amounts to the Hospital and other New
Hampshire hospitals.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding retroactive 1o
Juiy 1, 2010, Unlike the former funding methed, the State's approach led to a payment that was nct
directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation created
some level of losses al certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains. In
2011, the Hospital recognized disproportionate share payments totaling $3,152,663. In 2010, the
Hospital recognized disproportionate share payments iotaling $3,461,215.

As part of the State's biennial budget process for the two-year peried ending June 30, 2013, it
eliminated disproportionate share paymenis to eertain New Hampshire hospitals, excluding hospitals
classified as critical access. In December 2011, critical access hospitals in the State of New
Hampshire received 75% of the disproportionate share funding due the hospitals covering the State's
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which are reflected in the amounts above,

In response to the State's actions, certain New Hampshire hospitals have collectively filed & lawsuit
against the State. At the date of these financial statements, the Hospital had eleeted not to join this
lawsuit, since the State's biennial budget is slated to provide dispropotionate share funding to critical

access hospitals.

The Hespital has amended MET returns for State fiscal years 2009 through 2011 based upeon further
guidance provided that certain exclusions can be deducted from net patient service revenues. The
State Department of Revewne Administration bas avdited these returns; however, the outcome of the
amended returns and related audits is uncertain at the date of these financial statements.

14



TIIE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Hospital 1o credit tisk consist of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The Hospital maintaing cash accounts in financial institutions
which are insured by federal agencies up to $250,000. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is
minimized by the Hospital's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities
issued by highly rated financial institutions. The Hospital's accounts receivable are primarily due
from third-party payors, and amounts are presented net of expected contraciual allowances and
uncollectible amounts, Individual investments that exceeded 10% of total investments include the
Dreyfus Cash Management Fund as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, This investment represented
approximately 15% and 27% of total investments as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Hospital grants credit withont collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross patient accounts receivable at
September 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

2011 2010
Medicare 28% 31%
Medicaid 6 6
Anthem 10 11
Other third-party payors 23 25
Patients _33 ey

100%  100%

Pledees Receivable

Pledges receivable consist of unconditicnal promises for contributions receivable in subsequent years,
The following represents amounts promised to be coutributed to the Hospital during the years ended
Septernber 30:

2011 2010
In cne year or less $ 858,567 § 879,937
Between one and five years 262,167 803,071

1,120734 1,683,008

Present value discount (19,042) (63,715}
Allowance for uncollectible pledges {$494,159 and $-0-

of which is allocated to the current portion of pledges

receivable at September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively) _(627,318) _(646,504)

$_473.874 §_0572.789

During 2008, the Hospital began the process of constructing a $22 milliocn expansicn to its current
facility. The Hospital has held a capital carapaign to support a portion of this expansion. As of
September 30, 2011, approximately $6,400,000 hias been pledged or received in support of this

campaign.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets Limited as to Use and Restricted Funds

The composition of assets limited as to use at September 30, 2011 and 2010 is set forth in the
following table, Investments are stated at fair value.

2011 2010

Eeld by trustee;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,819,168 § 6,909,812
Board designated, donor restricted and long-term investments:

Cash and cash equivaients 3,539,759 2,656,227

Marketable equity securities 12,851,552 11,179,773

Mutual funds 986,299 1,447,226

U.S. Treasury obligations 7,017,028 6,531,047

Corporate and foreign bonds 291,359 -

Interests in perpetual trusts 2,736,875 2,685,300

Bequest receivable 1,000,000

27422913 25,499,575

$20242,081  $32,409,387

Amounts held by trustee represent disbursement funds related to funds drawn on the Serjes 2009
Revenue Bonds issue that have not yet been released to the Hospital as of year-end date. Funds
released from this account are used to pay for costs incurred in conjunction with the ongoing
construction project.

As a resull of bequests, the Hospital is the beneficiary of two trust funds, one of which is administered
by an outside trustse and the other administered by the Hospital. The terms of the perpetual trusts
require that income or a percentage of income be paid to the Hospital in perpetnity; however,
distribution of principal is not permitted under the terms of the trusts. The amounts recorded in the
accompanying balance sheets represent the fair values of the assets upon notification of the trusts'
existence, which are adfusted annually to reflect the appreciatiou or depreciation in the fair value of
the assets. Offsetting amountls are included in permanently restricted net assets. Income distributed to
the Hospital from these trusts is included n the accompanying statement of operations as investment
income.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets Limited as to Use and Restricted Irnnds (Continued)

Investment income and realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments are summarized as
follows:

2011 2010
Unrestricted:
Ihvestment income $ 416,171 § 443,002
Net realized gains on investments 516,679 268,872
Net unrealized gains on investments 28563 675,523
961,413 1,389,397
Restricted:
Investment income 42,184 48,272
Net nnreelized gains on perpetual trusts 51,575 152,628

93,755 200,900

$1,055172  $1.590,297

The following table smnmarizes the aggregate mirealized losses on investments held at September 30,
2011 and 2010:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Menths or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair TUnrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

2011 T
Marketable equity

securities $1,207,822 ${263,392) §1,846,254 $(399,416) $3,054,076 $(662,808)

Mutual funds - - 380,463 (71,934) 380,463 {71,936}

Fixed income 141.494 (1.209) - - 141,494 {1,209

$1,349,316 $(264.601) $2,226717 §{471,352} 33,576,033 §$({735953}

2010
Marketable equity

securities $ 736,603 $ (61,449) §$1,475,021 $(294,854) $2,211,624 $(356,303)
Mutual funds - - 415,473 (59,106 415,473 (59,106)
Fixed income 403,832 (5,047 - - 403,832 {5,047)

$1,140435 $_(66,4%6) $1.890,494 $(353,960) $3.030,920 $(42045¢)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets Limifed as to Use and Restricted Funds {Centinued)

Unrealized losses within marketable equity securities of $662,808 at September 30, 2011, due mainly
to market fluctuations, consists of eighteen securities, of which ten had unrealized losses for more than
twelve months. Unrealized losses within mutual funds of 371,936 at September 30, 2011, due mainly
to market fluctuations, consists of five funds, all of which had unrealized losses for more than twelve
mounths, Other unrealized losses in the Hospital's fixed income portfolio at September 30, 2011 are
attributed to market fluctuations and the impact mevements in market interest rates have had in
comparison to the underlying yields on these securities.

Managentent of the Hospital, in addition to considering current trends and economic conditions that
may affect the guality of individual securities within the Hospital's investment portfolio, also
considers the Hospital's ability and intent to Lold such securities to maturity or recovery. Management
does not believe any of the Hospital's securities with unrealized losses as described above are other
than temporarily impaired at September 30, 2011 and 2010,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following al September 30:

2011 2010
Land and land improvements 5 4471198 § 3,312,476
Building and building improvements 28,015,401 19,143,423
Equipment, including capital leases 38,920,049 38,240,434
Capital improvements in progress — see Note 12 1,644,168 10,530,226
73,050,816 71,226,558
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (34,382.441) (36,014.593)

P 38608375 $.35211.806

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment for the years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010 amonnted to $4,821,873 and $4,323,128, respectively. The cost of
assets recorded under capital leases totaled $1,946,064 and $2,382,643 at September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The cost of these assets have been included with properly and equipment and
accumulated amortization included with accunwlated depreciation. Accummiated amortization
associated with these leases was $1,442313 and $1,417,886 at September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. .
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Oblications

Long-term debt consists of the folowing at September 30:

New Hampshire Business Finance Authority (NHBFA)
in conjunction with Revenue Bonds;
Series 2009 with variable rate interest subject to
an interest rate swap agreement (sec below) $ 9,579,554 % 9,726,296
Series 2007 with varying interest at daily rates determined by
the remarketing agent, The Bonds include an option to
convert to a fixed rate in future periods and are subject to
an interest rate swap agreement (see below) 18,335,000 18,840,000
Interest rate swap loan (see below) 428,000 476,000
Capital lease obligations with interest rates ranging from 3.25% to
8.00%, due in monthly installments ranging from $2,368 to
$55,076, with maturity dates ranging fromn November 2011
to April 2014, collateralized by equipment 501,375 1,040,870

28,903,969 30,083,166
Less current portion (1,050,994  (1,179.198)

$21.852,975 528,903,968

On August 1, 2009 the Hospital, in comnection with NHBEFA, issued $9,750,000 of tax-exempt
revenue bonds. The Series 2009 Revenue Bonds were issued for the purpose of funding certain

capital projects.

The Series 2009 Revenue Bonds censist of serial bonds which mature annually in amounts ranging
from $154,686 in 2012 to $5,425,160 in 2029, The bonds bear interest at a variable rate equal to the
sum of (1) the one month LIBOR multiplied by 69% plus (2) a percentage factor (dependent on the
debt service coverage ratio maintained, ranges from 3% to 4%) multiplied by 69%. The interest rate
at September 30, 2011 was 2.91%. Interest only payments were made on the bonds for the first twelve
months after issvance and thereafter, principal and interest payments are made with the balance due in
full In October 2019 at the demand of the bondhelders and, in the absence of such dermand, the bonds
are duc iu full in October 2029. The Hospital has granted NHBFA a first security in all gross receipts
and substantially all property and equipment of the Hospital.

On October 15, 2007, the Hospital, in connection with NHBFA, issued $20,230,000 of tax-exempt
revenue bonds. The Series 2007 Revenue Bonds were lssued for the purpose of advance refunding all
of the Series 1997 and 2004 Revenue Bonds, and also the refinancing of the note payable to Rural
Utilities Services, with additional proceeds to be used for funding certain capital projects.
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September 30, 2011 and 2010

Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations (Continued)

The Series 2007 Revenue Bonds mature annnally in amounts ranging from $525,000 in 2012 to
$1,235,000 in 2033. The bonds bear interest at varying daily interest rates determined by the
renlarketing agent and include an option to convert to a fixed rate in future periods. The interest rate
at Septernber 30, 2011 was 2.91%, including letter of credit fees, remarketing fees and the associated
swap agreements. The bonds are secured by a lefter of credit in the amount of $19,036,142 from a
financial institution, which expires September 30, 2017, This letter of credit may be extennded on each
October 15 of 2012 through 2016 for an additional period at the financial institution's discretion upon
request by the Hospital, If the letter is not renewed, the bonds are subject to mandatory tender for
purchase via a draw on the letter of credit at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof,
plus accrued interest. Additionally, the Hospital has granted the financial institution a first security in
all gross revenues and receipts and substantially all equipment of the Hospital.

Concurrent with the August 1, 2009 NHBFA bond issuance, the Hospital executed an interest rate
swap agreement to hedge its exposure to the volatility of interest payments on its variable rate Series
2009 Revenue Bends, At September 30, 2011, an interest rate swap agreement was cutstanding at a
notional amount totaling approximately §9.6 million. The swap agreement bedges the Hospital's
interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments from variable rates to a fixed rate of
2.9%. The swap agreement, which expires in October 2019, is designated zs a cash flow hedge of the
underlying variable rate interest payments, and changes in the fair value of the swap agreement are
reported as a change in unrestricted net assets, Tbe swap agreement had fair value of $(1,163,942) and
$(1,009,732) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Concumrent with the October 15, 2007 NHBFA bond issuance, the Hospital executed an interest rate
swap agreement to hedge its exposure to the volatility of interest payments on a portien of its variable
rate Series 2007 Revenue Bonds. At September 30, 2011, an interest rate swap agreement was
outstanding at a notional amount totaling approximately $11.3 million. The swap agreement hedges
the Hospital's interest exposure by effcctively converting interest payments from variable rates to a
fixed rate of 3.57%. The swap agreemient, which expires in October 2033, is designated as a cash flow
hedge of the underlying variable rate interest payments, and changes in the fair valve of the swap
agrecment are reported as a ehange in unrestricted net assets. The swap agreement had fair value of
$(2,508,508) and ${2,113,503) as of September 30, 2011 and 2011), respectively.

The Hospital had a third interest rate swap agreement with a firancial institution, which was originally
issued in commection with the 2004 New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority
(NHHMEFA) bonds, which were refunded during 2008. During 2010, the Hospital replaced this 2004
swap agreement with a new 2010 swap agreemeunt that effectively hedges a portion of the 2007
NHBFA bonds. This newly issued swap agreement coutains an additional interest rate spread, which
in turn provides that the issuing bank make a cash payment lo fund the payofl of the 2004 swap
agreement on behalf of the Hospital, Accordingly, the Hospital recognized an interest rate swap loan
liability of $480,000 during 2010, which represents the fair value of the 2004 swap at the time it was
replaced, This loan is being amortized by the Hospital over the life of the new swap agreement. At
September 30, 2011, an interest rate swap agreement was cutstanding relating to the 2010 swap at a
notional amourt totaling approximately $7.5 million. The 2010 swap agreement hedges the Hospital's
interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments from variable rates o a fixed rate of
2.76%. The swap agreement, which expires September 2020, is desipnated as a cash flow hedge of
the underlying variable rate interest payments, and changes in the fair value of the swap agreement are
reported as a change in unrestricted net assets. The swap agreement had a fair value of $(425,451) and
$(253,099) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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September 30, 2011 and 2010

Lonu-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations (Continued)

During the year, the Hospital pays or receives the difference between the fixed and variable rates
applied to the notional amounts of the above interest rate swap agreements., During 2011 and 2010,
the Hospital charged interest expense of $652,411 and $547,581, respectively.

In connection with the 2007 and 2009 NHBFA bonds, the Hospital is required to comply with certain
restrictive financial covenants including, but not limited to, debt service coverage and debt to equity

ratios. At September 30, 2011, the Hospital was in conmpliance with these restrictive covenants,

Scheduled gross principal payments on long-term debt for the next five years are ag follows:

Capital
Long-Tern Lease
Debt Obligations Total

2012 {included in current liabilities) § 727,686  §$323,308 3 1,050,994
2013 761,102 167,777 928,879
2014 789,977 70,290 860,267
2015 824,334 - 824,334
2016 859,201 - 859,201
Thereafter 24,380,294 — 24,380,294

$28342.504  $561,375  $28.903.969

The Hospital also has an available $3,000,000 revelving line of credit with a financial mstitution. The
line of credit agreement bears interest at the Hospital's option of the prime rate or 1, 2 or 3 month
LIBOR plus 1.5% (3.25% at September 30, 2011). There was no balance outstanding under this
agreement at September 30, 2011 or 2010.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods at September 30

2011 2010
Health care services:
Purchase of equipment $ 630,125 §$1,884,239
Health education 231,640 247,309
Pledges receivable 473,874 972,789
Capital appreciation on endowment funds:
Acewnulated realized gains 22,249 22,248

$1.357.888 53,126,586
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (Continued)

Permanently restricted net assets of §$6956,317 and $6,004,665 at September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, are to be held in perpetuity and include two perpetual trusts (Note 6), The income and
dividends on permeanently restricted nef assets are generally expendable to support health care services
and capital purchases at the discretion of the Hospital and are principaily recorded as net assets

relsased from restrictions for the purchase of property and equipment.

During the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, $105,541 and $124,525, respectively, have been
reclassified from temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets {recorded as net assets

released from restrictions for operations).

Activity in fiscal 2011 and 2010 related to endowment funds was as follows:

Temporarily — Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted

Net Assets  Net Assets Net Aszets
2011
Balunces, beginning of year £(368,390) § 22,249 33,220,405
Contribntions (including receipt of prior bequest) - - 1,000,077
Interest and dividends - 88,604 -
Realized and unrealized gains on investiments 168,045 — -
Appropriation for expenditure - {88.604) -
Balances, end of year 5(200,345) $.22249  $4,220482
2010
Balances, beginning of year £(592,940) § 22,249 $3,215,888
Contributions - - 517
Interest and dividends - 07,203 -
Realized and unrealized gains on investments 224,550 - -
Appropriation for expenditure - (97,203) -
Balanees, end of year $(368,390)  $.22,249  $3.220,405
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITATL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue consists of the following for the years ended Scptember 30:

2011 2010
Gross patient service revenue:
Routine services $ 16,602,134 3 15,073,445
Ancillary services 102,394,117 85,112,092

118,996,271 111,185,537

Deductions from revenue:

Contractual adjustmeuts and administrative write offs (47,006,008) (41,706,569)
Financial assistance program {3,194,301) (3,277, 777)
Disproportionate share funding (note 3) 3.152,663 3461213
{47.047,646) (41,523,131)

Net patient service revenue $.71,948,625 69,662,406

"Emplovee Benefit Plans

The Hospital has a tax-sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. Participating
employees become eligible for employer contributions following the completion of two years of
service, as defined, and attainment of age 21. Employer contributions are determined based on a
percentage of employees' salaries. Benefit expense related to this plan for the years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately §744,000 and $755,000, respectively.

In 2010, the Hospital also offered o certaiu physicians the option to participate in an Internal Reveuue
Code Section 457 deferred compensation plan to whick the Hospital may make a discretionary
contribution. The Hospital made no contributions to the Plan for the years ended September 30, 201!
and 2010,

Commitments and Contingencies

The Hospital has purchased a commercial insurance policy that provides for comprehensive general
liability 'and professional liability coverages on a claims made basis. As of September 30, 2011, there
were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be settied
for amounts in excess of insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents for which
an accrual has not been made, The Hospital intends to continue coverage on a claims made basis with
a commercial carrier and anticipates that such coverage will be available,

During 2009, the Hospital entered into a constiuction contraet to expand the current facilities. Costs
of construction were cstimated at approximately $15.5 million, As of September 30, 2011, the project
was substantially complete and the remaining contractual commitment was approximately $112,000.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Volunteer Services (Unaudited)

In 2011 and 2010, total volunteer service hours received by the Hospital were approximately 12,000
and 14,000, respectively. The volunteers provide nonspecialized services to the Hospital, none of
which have been recognized as revenue or expense in the statements of operations.

Functional Expenses

The Hospital provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location.
Hxpenses, excluding the New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax, related to providing these
services are as follows for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Health care services $63,378,679  $62,247,10%
General and administrative, including interest 6,955,103 6,719,799

370,333,782 568,966,908

Fundraising related expenses were approximately $432,000 and $325,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Financial Assistance Program and Community Benefits (Unandited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of financial assistance it provides.
These records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished wuder its
financial assistance pregram, the estimated cost of those services and supplies, and equivalent service
statistics. ‘The following information measures the level of financial assistance provided during the
years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Charges foregone, based cn established rates $3,194,000 §$3,278,000
Estimated costs incurred o provide financial assistance $1.957.000 $2,115.000
Equivalent percentage of financial assistance services to all services 2.08% 2.95%

In addition to the financial assistance identified above, the Hoespital does not receive full payment
from the Medicare and Medicaid programs for the cost of services to certain poor and elderly patients
served. In 201! and 2010, the Hospital incurred costs in excess of payments in these programs
amounting to approximately $4,502,000 and $4,515,000, respectively.

The Hospital alse provides other services to the community at no cost or reduced cost, such as

sereenings, clinics, etc. The cost of providing these services was approximately $2,166,000 and
$2,389,000 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received upon sale of an asget
or paid upon transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability, The fair
value should be calculated based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing (he
asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the entity. In addition, the fair valus of labilities
should include counsideration of non-performance risk including the System's own credit risk.

The FASB's codification establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs, The hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value
arc observable in the market. Each fair value measurement is reported in one of the three levels which
is determined by the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
These levels are:

Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange, Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and
federal agency mortgage-backed securitiss, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active
markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets,
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or
liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not
based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate
certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or
liabilities.
In determining the appropriate levels, the Hospital performs a detailed analysis of the assets and
liabilities. At each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is
based on significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3.

For the figeal year ended September 30, 2011, the application of valuation techniques applied to
siinilar agsets and habilities has been consistent with prior years.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Fair Value of Financinl Instruments {(Continuned)

The following presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

at September 30:

2011
Assets:
Assets limited as to use:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Treasury obligations
U.S. common stock
Mutual funds:
Domestic
Internztional
Closed end
Fixed income
Investments in perpetual trust

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

2010
Assets:
Aszsets limited as to use:
Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Treasury obligations
U.S. commmon stock
Mutual funds:
Domestic
International
Closed end
Fixed income
Investments in perpetual trust
Bequest receivable

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

Total Level 1 Leve] 2 Level 3
$ 5,358,927 § 826427 § 4,532,500 § -
7,017,029 7,017,029 - -
12,851,552 12,851,552 - -
229,713 229,713 - -
641,401 641,401 - -
115,185 115,185 - -
291,366 - 261,399 -
2,736,875 - 2,736,875 -
$29,242 081 $21.681307 $_ 7560774 % -
$.4.097901 3§ — h — 54097901
$ 9,566,039 § 595,307 & §970,732 % -
6,531,047 6,531,047 - -
11,179,775 11,179,775 - -
237,126 237,126 - -
782,380 782,380 - -
130,042 130,042 - -
297,678 - 297,678 -
2,685,300 - 2,685,300 -
1,000,009 - 1,000,000 -
$32,409387 $19,455.677 $12,853.710 $__ -
$.3376334 § - % - $.3376334

The valuation of the interest rate swap agreements is estimated by a third party based on the
anticipated cash flows under the swap agreements over their duration at market interest rates at

September 30, 2011 and 2010.
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THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011 and 2010

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following presents the change in Level 3 instruments for the years ended Seplember 30:

Interest Rate Swaps
2011 2010

Balance, beginning of period £(3,376,334) §(2,291,851)

Swap payoff (see Note 8) 480,000
Total unrezlized losses, net of payments:
Included in statement of operations - (130,223)
Included in changes in net assets (721,567) {1.434.260)
Balance, end of period _ $(4,097,801) $.(3.376.334)

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as intcrest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amonnts reported in the accompanying
halance sheets and statements of operations,

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Hospital in estimating the "fair value" of
other financial instruments in the accompanying financial statements and notes thereto:

Cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in the sccompanying statements of
financial position for these financial instruments approximate their fair values,

Aeccounts add other receivables, pledges receivable, notes receivable, accounts payable and
estimated thivd-party payor seitlemenis: The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying
statements of financial position approximate their respective values as these financial instruments
have short-term maturities cr are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value.

Long-term debi: The fair value of substantially all long-term debt approximates its carrying value
due to the variable rate interest terms.
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E Bankl

Amerlca’s Most Convanlent Bank®

November 16, 2012

Rich Scheinblum

Chief Financial Officer

The Monadnock Community Hospital
452 0O1d Street Road

Peterborough, NH 03458

Re:  Direct Purchase Bond of Up To $32,000,000 Bond Issue

Dear Rich:

TD Bank, N.A. (the “Bank™) is pleased to provide The Monadnock Community Hospital
("MCH?" or “Borrowey”) with its commitment with respect to purchasing up to $32,000,000 of the
Business Finance Authority of New Hampshire Series 2012 Bond (the “Bond™), as described in this
letter and on the attached Exhibit A (the “Term Sheet” and together with this letter, this
“Commitment”),

Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions contained in this Commitment and your acceptarce
hereof, the Bank commits to purchase the Bonds pursuant to the terms and conditions referred to in this
Commitment.

Please note that the terms and conditions of this Commitment are not limited to those set forth
in this Commitment. Those matters that are not covered or made clear herein or in the attached Term
Sheet are subject to mutval agreement of the parties. In addition, this Commitment is subject to the
preparation, execution and delivery of mutually acceptable documentation substantially incorporating
the terms and conditions outlined herein and in the Term Sheet,

This Commitment is subject to termination if any of the following occur: () filing by or against
Borrower of any petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization or for the appointment of a
receiver or a trustee, or the making of an assignment for the benefit of creditors or the filing of a
petition for airangement; (b) any information previously or hereafter submitted to Bank by Boirower,
or any affiliate of Borrower, proves to have been inaccurate, incomplete, or misleading in any respect
which is reasonably deemed by Bank to be material; (c) the occurrence of any change subsequent to
the date of the most recent financial information previously submitted to Bank, or any development
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on, the Borrower’s business, assets, liabilities,
financial condition or operations (financial or otherwise), and (d) the entry of a judgment against
Borrower, which is reasonably deemed by Bank to materially affect the credit standing of Borrower.
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Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold harmiess Bank, any participants and any of their
officers, agents, directors, employees, advisors, and affiliates (the “Indemnified Parties™) from and
against all losses, claims, damages, lHabilities and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable
fees and expenses of counsel) that may be incurred by or asserted or awarded against any Indemnified
Party, in each case arising out of or in connection with or by reason of (including, without limitation,
in connection with any investigation, litigation or proceeding or preparation of defense in connection
therewith} this Commitment or the financing contemplated hereby, or any use made or proposed to be
made with the proceeds thereof, except to the extent such claim, damage, loss, liability or expense is
found in a final, nonappealable judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted from
such Indcmniﬁed Parly’s gross negligence or willfiil misconduct, In the case of any investigation,
litigation or proceeding to which the indemnity in this paragraph applies, such indemnity shall be
effective whether or not such investigation, litigation or proceeding is brought by Borrower or an
Indemnified Party or an Indemmnified Party is otherwise a paity thereto and whether or not the
transaction contemplated by this Commitinent is consummated,

In further consideration of this Commitinent, and recognizing that in connection herewith Bank
may incur substantial costs and expenses, including, without limitation, fees and expenses of counsel
and dug diligence, transportation, computer, duplication, appraisal, audit, insutance, consultant, search,
filing and recording fees, Borrower agrees to pay, from time 10 1ime on request, such costs and
expenses (whether incurred before or after the date hereof), regardless of whether the transaction
contemplated by this Commitment (or any part thereof) is consimmated or any loan decumentation is
entered into, Borrower also agrees to pay all reasonable costs and expenses of Bank (including,
without limitation, rensonable fees and expenses of counsel) incurred in connection with the
enforcement of this Commitment.

Borrower agrees that this Commitment is for Borrower’s confidential use only and neither its
existence nor the terms hereof will be disclosed by Borrower to any person or entity other than its
officers, directors, accountants, attorneys and other advisors, and then only on a "need to know" basis
in connection with this Commitment and-on a confidential basis, except that, following Borrower's
return of an executed counterpart hereof to Bank Bon'ower may (&) make public disclosure of the
existence and amount of Bank’s commitment hqwl,mdcr (b} file & copy of this Commitment in any
public record In which it is required by law to be filed, and (c) make such other public disclosures of
the terms and conditions hercof as Borrower is required by law, in the opinion of Borrower's counsel,
to make, Borrower agrees that it will permit Bank to review and approve any reference to Bank or any
of its affiliates contained in any press releass or similar public disclosure prior to public reiease,

By saceeptance of this Commitment, Borrower hereby indemnifies Bank and any participants .
againgt claims of brokers, finders, investment bankers or like third parties arising in connection with

this Commitment.

Borrower represents and warrants that (a) all information tha! has been or will hereafter be
made available by or on behalf of Borrewer or by any of its representatives or affiliates in connection
with this Commitment and the transaction contemplated hereby to Bank, or any of its affiliates or
representatives (other than financial projections), when read in the aggregate, is end will be complete
and correct in all material respects and does not and will not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which such statements were or are made, and (b} all
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finaneial projections that have been or will be prepared by Borrower or on Borrower’s behalf or by any
of its representalives and made available to Bank, or any of its affiliates or representatives in
connection with this Commitment and the transactions contemplated hereby have been or will be
prepared in good faith based upon reasonsble assumptions (it being understood that such projections
are subject to significant uneertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond Borrower’s
control, and that no assurance can be given that any particular projections will be realized). Bortower
agrees to supplement the informatjon and projections from time o time so that the representations and
warranties contained in this paragraph remain complete and correct.

Borrower’s obligations under this letter shall survive any termination of Bank’s commitment
hereunder and shall be enforceable against Borrower regardless of whether the dofinitive financing
agreements ave exccated, Bank shall not be responsible or liable to Borrower or any other person for
any consequential or indirect damages that may be alleged as a result of this commitment letter,

This Commitment is not assignable by Borrower and may not be relicd upon or enforced by
any other person or entity. : ¥

This Commitiment shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State
of New Hampshire. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this Commitment by facsimile or other
efcetronic transmission shatl be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpast of this
Commitmient, Bach of Borrower and Bank hereby irrevocably waives all right to trial by a jury in any
action, suit, proceeding or countercinim (whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) arising out of or
relating to this Commitment, the transaetions contemplated hersby or the actions of Bank, in the
negotiation, performance or enforcement hereof.

This Commitment supersedes all prior ora} and written communications, dealings and
understandings between Borrower and Bank and their respective affiliates, agents, officers, employees,
directors, advisors and other representatives, The terms of this Commitment may not be waived,
modified or in any way changed by implication, correspondence or otherwise unless such waiver,
modification or change is madc in the form of an amendment to this Commitment in writing and
agreed to by all partigs.

This Commitment expires at 5:00 p.m. on November 30, 2012 {(the "Commitment Expiration
Date”) unless aceepted by Bormower prior to such time, and the transaction contemplated by this
Commitment must bo closed in accordance with the terms of this Commitment not later than Jamuary
25,2013 (the *Closing Date"), as such date may be extended in writing by Bank in its sole discretion,

If the foregoing is acceptable, kindly so indicate the agreoment and acceptance of Borrower by
having an authorized officer of Borrower sign and date one copy of this letter, and return such copy
together with tho Term Sheet attached hereto to Bank to the attention of the undersigned for Bank’s
files not later than 5:00 p.m. on the Commitment Expiration Date.

TD Bank, N. A, appreciates the opportunity to offer this Commitment and looks forward to
working with you on successtully completing this transaction.




Sincerely,

' TD BANK, N.A.

By: MK ??2 WW

Name: Stacey M, Doglon
Title:  Viee chmdcnt

Attachment (Exhibit A)

Accepted dég ed to:

By:
Nan(i’e{ 2[}\%{/‘,[ D 5&‘6’-—-'&'“14—,
Titler Chie Fotne/wl oL, €—

Date: November 2%, 2012
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EXHIBIT A

Terms and Cenditfons

Credli Amount:
Type of Credit:

Collateral:

Up to $28,000,000.

Non-Bank Qualified, Tax-Exempt Pilvate Placement
Bond to ba purchased by TD Bank, N.A.

Business Finance Authority of New Hampshire (BFA)

{a} Direct Purchage of the existing Serles 2007 and 2009
Bonds

{b) Bond lssuance Costs

10 years

It Is assumed that the Bonds will be emorflzed over a
maximum of thirty (30) years.

An upfront fee equal to 26 basls pointe to be epplled to
the Lean amount shall be due al olosing

No prepayment penalty

The Interest rate would be equal to the sum of the 1-
monin LIBOR rate pius 1.76%, mulliplled by 76%; the
{nterest rate wili adjust monthly. Based on the 1-month

LIBCR of 0.20750% as of November 14, 2012, the inlitlet
rate would be epproximalely 1.4861%.

- Tha Bank will benefit from a securlty Interast in gross

récelpts and business assets granted to the BFA for the
Bonds. The Borrowsr shall also provide a Mortgage on
the “real sstate owned by the Borrower, and an
asslgnment of lenses and rents; an appraisal and Phase
One Environmental Slta Assessment wilt be required.
Collateral will be on parity with any existing or fulurg debt.

Qption 2; Fixed Rate Nopn Bank Qualifled Tax Exempt Private Placemsnt Bond;

Borrowsr:
Credit Amount:
Type of Credit:

lssuern
Purpose of Loan:

Payments:

The Monadnoek Gommunlty Hospltal (“Borrower™),
Up to $32,000,000.

Non-Bank Quallfied, Tax-Exempt Private Placemant
Bond to be purchased by TD Bank, N.A,

Business Finance Authority of New Hampshire (BFA)

{a) Direct Purchase of the exisling Serles 2007 and 2009
Bonds

{b} Swap Termination Cosls

(c) Bond lssuance Gosts

10 years

It le assumad that the Honds wilf be amorilzed over a

S ,., 5



Exhibit A
Terms and Condliions

(h)  UpfroniFes:
(i) Prepayment Fese;
) Interest Rate:

(k) Coliateral;

3. Deposi Rel S

maxirmum of thidy (30) years.

An upfront fee equal to 25 basis points to be applled to
the Loan amount shall bs due &t closing

At the time of any lull prepayment, a fee equal lo the
Yleld Maintenance shall be dus

A 10-yoar fixed tax exsmpt interest rale aquel fo the sum
of the Bank's 10/30 Closed Cost of Funds {COF) rata
piug 1.50%, muitiplled by 75%. Based on the 10/30
Closed CCF rate of 2.03% as of November 13, 2012, the
fixed rate would be approxlmately 2.8475%; this rate is
indicative and is aubject to change until closing.

The Bank will benefit from a security interest in gross
recelpts and business assets granted to the BFA for the
Bonds, The Borrower shall also provide a Morlgage on
the real astate owned by the Bomowsr, and an
asslgnment of {eases and rents; an appralsal and Phage
Ong Environmental Slte Assesament will be required,
Collateral wllf be on parity with any existing or future dabt.

The Borrower will be required to maintain its primary depository relationship with the Bank for the term

of the Credit Facllity.

4, Feas and Expenses:

The Bojrower shall pay lo the Bank on demend any and all costs and expenses {including, without
Himltation, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements, court costs, ltigation and other expenses)

incurred or paid by the Bank in connection with the loan.

5. Legs| Opiniom;

The tax exempt interest rotes et forth above are subject to a lax-exempt opinlon of counsel to the

Borrower and the Agency in form and substance acceptable to the Bank.

8. Dacuments:

The form and substence of all documents sxecuted and/or delivered to the Bank, including, but not
fimited to, the insurance policies and other Instruments of collateral therato, shell in alt respacts be

satisfactory to the Bank and Bank's counsel,

7. il

All debt lo be Cross-Collateraiized, Cross-Defaulted and on Parity with all existing and future debt.

8. Flpancial Reporting:

Borrower shall furnish the following financial reports:

Type of Repori

Audlled Financlal Statements

Frequency Due Datg

Annually 120 days after fiscal year end



Exhibit A
Terms and Conditions

Officars Cerlifieate, certifying compllence withtha  Quarterly 46 days after end of quartar
Financlal Loan Covenants

internally Prepared Flnanclal Statemants, to Quarerly 45 days after end of quarter
include Incoma statement snd balance sheet

Operatltg and Capilal Budget Annually g0 days after prior year end
Ulillzatlon Statistics Quaterly 45 days after end of quarter
Any CPA Mapagement Letter or Réports On Going

producad during the tenor of the proposad facilily

10.

1.

12,

13.

14,

15.

*In addttion, Borrower{s) shall furnish 1o the Bank such olher reporis as shall be requirsd In the Yoan documenta.

Financial Covenants:

Dsfinifions to remaln unchanged from thosa put in placa for the Seres 2009 Bond Issue.
»  Minimum Reliing Quarterly Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1,60z,
¢ Minlmum Seml-Annual Days Cash on Hand of 76 days
s Maximum Semi-Annual Debt to Capitalizetion Ratle of 80%.

Additional Dabl and Parmitiad Lisns:
The Bank would not prohibil the Borrower from Incurring any additfonsl Indebtadness subjact to;

s Prior notice 1o the Bank of the Borrowefs intent to Incur the Indebtednass, Including the amount

and terms;

« And, no current or past evants of default on the Credlt Facility, Including but not fimited to past

and antlcipnled future compilance with financing covenants;

» And, pro-forma debt service coverage ralio as defined psr the debt sarvice relio covenant (see
above) provided by the most recent fiscal yaars' cash flow avallable for debt service and the
existing and to be created Indebtedness dabt service does not falf below 1.50x.

Without the Benk's consent, the Borrower may Incur Indebtedness up to $750,000 annually for

customary GAPEX purchasas and grant PMS! in asaels purchased.

This commitment ie subjact to receipt and satisfactory Bank review of an eppraisal, propared by an
appralser of Bank's cholce, to ba completed not more than two months after closing of the bond.
Nole, there will be no reguired loan to valus ratio [n conjunction with thie appralsal..

Enviropmentat:
Thie commitment {s subject to completion and satlsfactery Bank review of a Phase One Envlronmental
Site Assesament, prapared by an environmental englneer of Bank's cholee prior to closing of the bond.

Title:

Bank shall require that a full title search be performed on the subjeot property. Bank reserves the right
to withdraw this commitment If the tille is not'sallsfactory to the Bank or Bank's colinsel,

Tite insurance:;

Bank shall require a title Insurance pol[cy ln a form sallsfactory to the Bank for the fuil amount of the
loap. Title Insurance |9 &lgo available to Insure the Borrower's Interest at an addlitional cost.

Finod Insurancse;




Exhibit A
Terms and Conditlons

If the property is located In a special food hazard area, appropriate fiood Insurance Is reguired In an
amount acesptable to the Bank.

18. Property Insurance:

Tha Borrower shail provide evidence of insyrance coverage for the total value of the collatsral. This
may Include, but I3 not iimitad to, “All Risk” Physlcal Darrage Insurance In an amount satisfactory to the
Bank for the life of the loan. Evidence of such'Insurance must be provided on or befora the date of the
closing and the insurance policy shall name Bénk as Morigagse or Lender Loss Payee and requiré
twenty (20} days advance notice of cancellafion, non-renewal, or any materal change. Such insurance
must be maintained {or the lerm of the loan and ihe Bank shalt be provided with any endorsements or
riders thereof. The Bank information should be: TD Bank, N.A., ISAOA, Attentlon: Commercial Loan
Department, 143 North Main Streset, Goncord, NH 03301.

17.0 to bid:

Acceptance of thess terms will give the Bank the opportunity to hid on any additional Interest rate
swaps, capltal and operating laases, short term debt taclilities, and any other Bank business as may
arise from time to Ime during the term of the faclllty,

18. Customey Idanilfigation:

Fedoral law requires that banks obtafn and verlfy information regarding the ldenilty of thelr cuslomers, |t
@ Borrower is an entity to be formed, then, at laast two (2) business days prior lo closing, the Borrower
must provide the Bank wilh such Information, documents or other evidance of Identity as the Bank may,
In its sole discration, require. Satisfaction of this raquirement and verlification of Borrower identity by the
Bank, as determined by the Bank In its sole discrefion, shall be a precondition to the Bank closing or
funding any foan to the Borrowsr,

19, Non-Assianably:
The identity of tha Borrower I3 ;of materla] importance to the Bank. This commitment may not be
assigned by the Borrower. AR

20. dye hah

The decision to lend Is based in parl on information supplied to this Bank by the Borrower or ils
representatives who prasented the Information as belng accurate and on which the Bank relied to make
its decision. Any misinformation or withholding of materlal Information incldent thereto, shall at the
oplion of the Bank and without limlitation ty any other right or ramedy of Benk, vold all of Bank's
oblfgations hereundsr. This commitment ig subjact to no material adverss change In the afairs,
circumstances, financlal condition, or controf of the Bormower subsequent lo the date this offer is made,

OTHER TERMS: The summary of terms and condltions sel forth In this letter doas not purport to Include all of
the conditions, covenants, representations, warranfies, defaulte and other provistons which will he contalned In
the deflnilive documents for the transaction which must be saltisfactory to Bank’s coupsel. We anticipate thal
any additional conditions, covenants and provistons will be consistent with those s stipulated in the existing
loan agresments and bond documentatlon. In addlfion to definliive financial and business covanants, closing
conditions (fncluding legal opinlons of Borrower's and Bank's coynsel}, finarncial and reporting requiremants and
representations and warranties =s to the financlal condition and busineas affalrs of the Borrower, additional
provisions wili inelude, but will nof necessarily be limited lo, approprate |nsurance, access lo books, records and
property, payment of indebtedness, taxes, and governmental charges, compliance with ERISA, environmental
taws and other federa), state, and local statutes, sales by the Bank of participations in the credit and defaults,
cross-defaulfs and remedies,




New Hampshire Econemic Conditions - November 2012 www.nhes.nh.gov/elmi

o Not Seasonally Adjusted Estimates by Place of Residence

New Hampshire Sep-12 Aug-12 Sep-11 Not Seasonally Adjusted Sap-12 Aug-12 Sep-11

i . Tatal Civilisn Lahor Force 737,540 746,370 737,460 United States 7.6% 8.2% 8.6%
i Employed 690,580 704,030 698,010 Northeast 7.8% 8.4% 8.0%
Unemployed 37,960 42,340 38,650 Naw England 7.0% 1.3% 7.5%

: ﬁ ! Unamployrnent Rate 5.1% 5.7% 5.2% Connecticut B8.2% 9.2% 8.5%
’ Mains 8.7% 8.7% 6.7%
| Uniled States (# in thousands) Sep-12 Aug-12 Sap-1 Massachuselis 6.4% 6.4% 7%
Total Chvillan Labor Force 156,075 165,255 154,022 New Harmpshire 5.1% 5.7% 5.2%

| Employed 143,333 142568 140,502 Riode Island 9.8% 10.6% 10.8%
“ Unemaloyed 11,742 12,698 13,520 Vatmont 4.5% B.0% 5.2%
Unemployment Rale 7.5% 8.2% 8.8% Mid Atiantle 5.2% 8.8% 8.0%
i . New Jersey 8.2% 9.7% 9.2%
L@ New York B.2% 8.8% 8.2%
Pennsylvania 7.5% 8.2% 7.5%

Courtias Sep-12  Anpg-12  Sep-11
L Belknap 48%  51% _ 51%
; Carrall 46%  43%  49%
| : Cheshire 4.8% 5.8% 5.1%
b Coos 6.4% 7.2% 6.5%
- 3 Grafton 4.0% 4.4% 4.2%
: Hillsborough 55% _ 0%  55%
Merimack 4,8% 8.1% 4.8% September 2012
Rogkingham 5.6% 6.1% 5.5% poe—r
, Suaffard 50% 5%  5.4% Less than 5.0%
: Suilivan 4.6% 4.8% 4.8% 5.0% 10 5.8%
Ma|
- Keff Lahor Market Areas Sep-12  Aug-12  Sep-11 6.0% to 6.9%
- 1| Colebrook KH-VT LMA, NH Porion 58% _ 68% &% =] 7.0%to T5%
' 2 | Berlin NH MicroMEGTA 7.6% 8.3% 7.8%
; 5| Litleton NHVT LMA, NH Porfn 45%  A0%h  4.1% === 8.0%and abova
' 4| Flaverhlll NH LMA 17% &% 5.1% " #| Unattached Aroas
5 | Gonway NH-ME LMA, NH Porlion 4.9% 4.5% 5.1% e
| 8 | Plymouth NH LMA 4.6% 5.1% 5.0%
l : 7 | Moulanberouglh NH LMA 3.6% 3.4% 3.9%
' & | Lebancn NHVT MlgoMEGTA, NH Rortion 3.4% 3.5% 3.5%
. @ : 6§ | Laconta NH MicroNECTA 5.0% 5.2% 5.2%
i 10 | Wolfeboro NH LMA 4.3% 4. 1% 4.4%
| i 19 | Frankiin NH MleroNEGTA 5.0% 5.3% 5.3%
I . 12 | Clarament NH MicroNECTA 4.7% 5.0% 4.9%
‘ i 13 | Newporf NH LMA 5.4% 5.7% 5.3%
! f 14 | Mew London NH LMA 4.4% 5.0% 44%
i : 16 | Concord NH MoroNECTA 4.8% 5.0% 4.8%
' 18 | Rochesler-Dover NH-ME MelraMECTA,
@ NH Fortion 5.0% 5.7% 5.1%
| 17 | Charlastown NI LA 4.5% 61%  5.3%
| _ 18 | Hilishorough NH LA 5.3% 5.2% 5.5%
i ’ 19 | Manchesier NH MetoNEGTA 5.2% 5.8% 5.2%
: 20 | Keane NH MicroNECTA 47%  B5%  4.8%
| 21 | Paterbomugh NB LMA 5.2% 6,2% 5.5%
| 22 | Nashua NH-MA NECTA Divislon, NH Pertion 5.5% 6.1% 5.6%
I G: 23 | ExelerAres, NH Potion, Haverhil-N, Andover-
| Amesbury MA-NH NECTA Dhvisian 6.2% 6.8% 6.0%
i 24 | Porlsmotsth NH-ME MetioNECGTA, NH Fortlon 4.3% 4.8% 4.5%
_1 25 | Hinsdale Town, NH Portion, Brattieboro VT-NH
LMA 5.7% 1.4% 5.1%
26 | Pelham Tawn, NH Portion, Lowsil-Billerlca-
Chelmsfard MA-NH NECTA Division 6.5% 6.6% 6.7% | New Hampshire unemployinent and labor force estimates are c.nleE]ﬂlnhc; us'i:rg ,:. ;:gex::‘izrl\c:\ficl
' Jich depends on Current Population Sarvey (CPS) esthiates, Labor Mark nles 1
. o 27 g:::$ LD::F?NHEP&TB}VII';:’ITI‘Ge'uem"en' 7.5% 8.2% 7.2% :::;lc?lnteg nsing'v,3 the Burssy o?Labor Slatistiis( "Hu?&clboak Mcthod” and then adjusted to the Stare
- OV CIs.
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$
Business Finance Authority of the State of New Ham pshire
Refunding Revenue Bonds
(The Monadnock Community Hospital Issue) Series 2013

LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT dated as of January 1, 2013 (with
any supplements, modifications or amendments hereto, including all exhibits and
schedules hereto, the “Agreement”) among TD Bank, N.A., as bond purchaser and
disbursing agent (with its successors and assigns, sometimes hereinafter referred to as the
“Purchaser” or the “Disbursing Agent.”), Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire, a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality duly organized and
validly existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (the “State™), as the issuer
(together with its successors and assigns, the “Issuer”), and The Monadnock Community
Hospital, a non-profit voluntary corporation organized under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire (the “Borrower”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized by law, including New Hampshire RSA
Chapter 162-1 (referred to herein as the “Act™) to enter into financing documents and
security documents with respect to indebtedness of the Issuer to be used to finance
eligible projects as described in the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower 1s a non-profit voluntary corporation, is an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code (defined below) and is authorized
to lease, sublease, purchase and hold real and personal property and to borrow money to
finance or refinance the same; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purpose of the Act, the Issuer proposes to
refinance the renovation and construction of the Property (as hereinafter defined) by the
Borrower pursuant to this Agreement by selling the Bonds (as hereinafter defined) to the
Purchaser and lending the proceeds thereof to the Borrower; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower proposes to borrow the proceeds of the sale of the
Bonds from the Issuer upon the terms and conditions set forth herein to refinance the
renovation and construction of the Property by refunding the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower shall make Debt Service Payments (as hereinafter
defined) to the Purchaser as assignee of the Issuer.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the premises contained
in this Agreement, the Purchaser, the Issuer and the Borrower agree as follows:



ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. Definitions. The following terms used herein will have the
meanings indicated below unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

“Accounts Receivable” means any and all rights of the Borrower to payment for
services rendered or for goods sold or leased which is not evidenced by an instrument or
chattel paper, whether or not it has been earned by performance.

“Act” means New Hampshire RSA Chapter 162-1, as in effect from time to time,
and any successor statute.

“Additional Payments” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section
4.03 hereof.

“Agreemeﬁt” means this Agreement, including all exhibits and schedules hereto,
as any of the same may be supplemented or amended from time to time in accordance
with the terms hereof.

“Asset Impairments and Abandonments” shall have the meaning as ascribed under
GAAP.

“Bonds” means the 3 Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire Refunding Revenue Bonds (The Monadnock Community Hospital Issue),
Series 2013 issued by the Issuer and purchased by the Purchaser pursuant to this
Agreement, which shall constitute “Bonds” within the meaning of Section 162-1:2 of the
Act, in the form of Exhibit C hereto, and any bond or bonds duly issued in exchange or
replacement therefor.

“Bond Counsel” means Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C,, or
other nationally recognized bond counsel selected by the Issuer and satisfactory to the
Purchaser.

“Bondowners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to. The
initial Bondowner is TD Bank, N.A., as the Purchaser.

“Bond Payments” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.04 of this
Agreement.

“Bond Proceeds” means the total amount of money to be paid pursuant to Section
2.02 hereof by the Purchaser to the Issuer on behalf of the Borrower, in accordance with
this Agreement.

“Borrower” means The Monadnock Community Hospital.

“Borrower’s Representatives™ means either the President/Chief Executive Officer
or the Vice President of Finance/Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act singly,



or an alternate or successor appointed by the Borrower with notice to the Disbursing
Agent.

“Business Day” means a day other thar a Saturday or Sunday on which banks are
generally open for business in New York, New York.

“Closing” means the issuance of the Bonds and the purchase of the Bonds by the
Purchaser.

“Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing occurs.

“Daily Cash Operating Expenses™ shall mean total operating expenses inclusive of
Interest Expense less depreciation, amortization, bad debt provision; excluding losses on
early extinguishment of Indebtedness, non-cash pension adjustments, changes in
unrealized securities and derivative values, all of the foregoing to be determined in
accordance with GAAP, divided by three hundred sixty-five (365).

“Date of Taxability” means the date upon which Interest became includable in the
Purchaser’s gross income for federal tax purposes as a result of an Event of Taxability.

“Days Cash on Hand” shall mean Unrestricted Cash and Investments divided by
Daily Cash Operating Expenses.

“Debt Service Coverage Ratio” shall mean for any twelve month period the ratio
established by dividing (a) Income Available for Debt Service for such period, by (b)
Debt Service Payments for such period, as the foregoing shall appear in the quarterly or
annual financial statements prepared by or on behalf of the Borrower in accordance with
Section 7.01 of this Agreement, and all of the foregoing to be determined in accordance
with GAAP.

“Debt Service Payments” means the payments payable by the Borrower pursuant
to the provisions of this Agreement in accordance with the schedule of principal
payments as specifically set forth in Exhibit A hereto. As provided in Article II hereof,
Debt Service Payments shall be payable by the Borrower to the Purchaser, as assignee of
the Issuer, in the amounts and at the times as set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

“Debt to Capitalization Ratio” shall mean the ratio established by dividing (a)
Short-Term Indebtedness plus Long-Term Indebtedness (less sinking fund repayment
funds held by any bond trustee), by (b) Unrestricted Net Assets plus Temporarily
Restricted Fund Balances plus Short-Term Indebtedness plus Long-Term Indebtedness
(less sinking fund repayment funds held by any bond trustee), all of the foregoing to be
determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Default” means an event that, with giving of notice or passage of time or both,
would constitute an Event of Default (defined below) as provided in Article XIII hereof.



“Determination of Taxability” means any determination, decision or decree by
the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, or any District Director of Internal Revenue or
any court of competent jurisdiction, or an opinion of counsel qualified in such matters
obtained by the Purchaser, that an Event of Taxability shall have occurred. A
Determination of Taxability also shall be deemed to have occurred on the first to occur of
the following:

(a) the date when the Borrower files any statement, supplemental statement,
or other tax schedule, return or document, which discloses that an Event of Taxability
shall have occurred; or

(b) the effective date of any federal legislation enacted after the date of this
Agreement or promulgation of any income tax regulation or ruling by the Treasury
Department or the Internal Revenue Service that causes an Event of Taxability after the
date of this Agreement.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 13.02
hereof.

“Event of Taxability” means an event upon the occurrence of which Interest is or
becomes includable in the Purchaser’s gross income for federal income tax purposes
(except where the Purchaser is a “substantial user” of the facilities refinanced with the
Bond Proceeds pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or a “related person” within the
meaning of Section 147 of the Code), as the result of any act, failure to act or use of the
Bond Proceeds, a change in use of the Property or any misrepresentation or inaccuracy in
any of the representations, warranties or covenants contained in this Agreement by the
Issuer or the Borrower or the enactment of any federal legislation after the date of this
Apgreement or the promulgation of any income tax regulation or ruling by the Internal
Revenue Service after the date of this Agreement.

“Expense Fund” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2.08
hereof.

“Fiscal Year” of the Borrower means the twelve months ending on September 30
in any calendar year, or such other twelve month period as the Borrower adopts as its
fiscal year in the future.

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles and practices in the
United States.

“Gross Receipts” means all current and future receipts, revenues, income and
other moneys received by or on behalf of the Borrower, including, but without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, revenues derived from the ownership or operation of the
Property, including insurance and condemnation proceeds with respect to the Property or
any portion thereof, and all rights to receive the same, whether in the form of accounts,
Accounts Receivable, contract rights or other rights, and the proceeds of such rights, and



whether now owned or held or hereafter coming into existence; provided, however, that
gifts, grants, bequests, donations and contributions heretofore or hereafter made and
designated or specified by the granting authority, donor or maker thereof as being for
specified purposes (other than payment of debt service on Indebtedness of the Borrower)
and the income derived therefrom to the extent required by such designation or
specification shall be excluded from Gross Receipts.

“Gross-Up Rate” means, with respect to any Interest payment (including payments
made prior to the Event of Taxability), an additional payment in an amount sufficient
such that the sum of the Interest payment plus the additional payments would, after
reduction by the federal tax (including interest and penalties) actually imposed thereon,
equal the amount of the Interest payment.

“Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward or
other hedging agreement, arrangement or security however denominated, expressly
identified pursuant to its terms as being entered into in connection with and in order to
hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of any Indebtedness.

“Income Available for Debt Service” shall mean, during the measured period, the
change in Unrestricted Net Assets plus depreciation and amortization plus Interest
Expense, plus/minus losses or gains on early extinguishment of Indebtedness, plus/minus
non-cash pension adjustments, plus/minus unrealized changes in securities and derivative
valuations, plus losses on Asset Impairments and Abandonments, minus assets released
for capital expenditures, all as determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Indebtedness”™ means, as to any Person, all obligations, contingent and otherwise,
which in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied
should be classified upon such Person's balance sheet as liabilities, but in any event
including, without limitation, liabilities secured by any mortgage, pledge, security
interest, lien, charge or other encumbrance existing on property owned or acquired by
such Person whether or not the liability secured thereby shall have been assumed, letters
of credit open for account, obligations under acceptance facilities, capitalized lease
obligations and all obligations on account of guaranties, endorsements and any other
contingent obligations in respect of the Indebtedness of others whether or not reflected on
such balance sheet or in a footnote thereto.

“Institution Counsel” means McKee, Giuliani & Cleveland.

“Interest” means the portion of any payment from the Issuer to the Purchaser on
the Bonds in an amount equal to the portion of the payment from the Borrower to the
Issuer designated as the interest component as shown in Exhibit A hereto.

“Interest Expense” shall mean interest expense paid by the Borrower with respect
to Short-Term Indebtedness and Long-Term Indebtedness (including letter of credit fees,
if any, and expenses plus/minus net settlements (exclusive of termination/unwind
settlements) on interest rate Hedge Agreements.



“Issuer” means the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire,
acting as the issuer under this Agreement, and its successors.

“Issuer's Service Charge” means payment to the Issuer for its own use of
$ , payable on the date of execution and delivery hereof.

“Issuer’s Tax Certificate” means the No Arbitrage Certificate of the Issuer of even
date herewith.

“LIBOR” means the London Interbank Offering Rate.
“Liens” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 6.07 hereof.

“Loan” means the loan of the Bond Proceeds from the Issuer to the Borrower
pursuant to this Agreement.

“Long-Term Indebtedness” shall mean all Indebtedness, other than Short-Term
Indebtedness, for any of the following:

(1) Payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed
for an original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from
the date originally incurred, of longer than one year;

(ii) Payments under leases which are capitalized in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at
the option of the lessee for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than
one year; and

(iii)  Payments under installment purchase contracts having an original
term in excess of one year.

“Mortgage’ means the mortgage agreement of even date herewith from the
Borrower to the Purchaser with respect to the Real Property.

“One-Month LIBOR” means the rate for deposits in U.S. Dollars for a period
equal to one month, as such rate appears on Telerate Page 3750 (as defined below) as of
11:00 AM, London time, on the day that is two (2) Business Days prior to the adjustment
date. If such rate does not appear on Telerate Page 3750, the rate for that adjustment date
will be the arithmetic mean of the rates quoted by major banks in London, selected by the
Purchaser, for a period equal to one (1) month, as of 11:00 AM, London time, on the day
that is two (2) Business Days prior to the adjustment date. “Telerate Page 3750” means
the display designated as “Page 3750” on the Dow Jones Telerate Service (or such other
page as may replace Page 3750 on that service or such other service as may be nominated
by the British Bankers® Association as the information vendor for the purpose of
displaying British Bankers’ Association Interest Settlement Rates for U.S. Dollar
Deposits). The interest rate from time to time applied hereunder, if based upon the One-
Month LIBOR, shall be calculated on the date hereof and thereafter on the same day of



cach calendar month hereafter, so that when the One-Month LIBOR shall change, the
applicable interest rate to be paid by the Borrower shall change, effective as set forth
above. The Purchaser shall not be required to notify the Borrower of adjustments in the
One-Month LIBOR or the applicable interest rate.

. “Permitted Liens” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Article I1I
paragraph (k).

“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association,
estate, joint stock company, trust, organization, business or a government or agency or
political subdivision thereof.

“Personal Property" means all properties, assets and rights of the Borrower,
wherever located, whether now owned or hereafter acquired or arising, and all proceeds
and products thereof, including, but not limited to, the following: all goods (including
inventory, equipment, accessions to inventory and equipment, timber to be cut, and as-
extracted collateral), fixtures, instruments (including promissory notes), documents,
accounts, accounts receivable, chattel paper (whether tangible or electronic), letter of
credit rights (whether or not the letter of credit 1s evidenced by a writing), commercial tort
claims, insurance claims and proceeds, and all general intangibles, including, without
limitation, all payment intangibles, payment applications, trademarks, trademark
applications, trade names, copyrights, copyright applications, software, engineering
drawings, service marks, customer lists, goodwill, and all licenses, permits, agreements of
any kinds and nature pursuant to which the Borrower possesses, uses, or has authority to
possess or use property (whether tangible or intangible) of others, or others posses, use or

~ have authority to possess or use property (whether tangible or intangible) of the

Borrower, and all recorded data of any kind or nature, regardless of the medium of
recording, including, without limitation, all software, writings, plans, specifications and
schematics; provided, however, that gifts, grants, bequests, donations and contributions
heretofore or hereafter made and designated or specified by the granting authority, donor
or maker thereof as being for specified purposes (other than payment of debt service on
indebtedness) and the income derived therefrom to the extent required by such
designation or specification shall be excluded from Business Assets; and provided
further, that, so long as no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the
Business Assets shall not include cash, cash equivalents, investment securities or
endowment funds on hand from time to time with the Borrower.

“Principal” means the portion of any Debt Service Payment designated as and
comprising principal as set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

“Project” means (i) the refinancing of the projects associated with the 2007
Bonds, namely: (a) construction of a new campus connector road, (b) major renovation

* and/or construction of the hospital pharmacy, (¢) purchase of major moveable and

imaging equipment and furniture and fixtures, and (d) building renovations, including a
major upgrade to electrical systems and other mechanical upgrades; (ii) the refinancing of
the projects associated with the 2009 Bonds, namely: (a) a new emergency room, (b)



operating room expansion, (c¢) construction and renovation of a clinic space and (d)
renovations to the obstetrical unit and (i11) the payment of related costs and expenses,
including issuance expenses.

“Project Costs” means the costs of issuing the Bonds which may be paid from
Bond Proceeds under the Act. Project Costs also shall be limited to costs which are
permitted to be paid or reimbursed from Bond Proceeds under the Tax Certificate.

“Property” means, collectively, the Real Property, the Personal Property and the
Project as defined herein.

“Purchaser” means (1) TD Bank, N. A., as purchaser and initial registered owner
of the Bonds, and (ii) any successor registered owner of the Bonds.

“Real Property” means (i) the real estate located in Peterborough, Hillsborough
County, New Hampshire, as more particularly described in the Mortgage executed on
even date herewith, all rights and easements appurtenant thereto, and all buildings,
structures, fixtures and improvements now or hereafter located thereon, and (ii) all
proceeds of the foregoing, including proceeds of insurance, eminent domain or sale.

“Refunded Bonds” shall mean the 2007 Bonds and the 2009 Bonds.

“Short-Term Indebtedness” shall mean all Indebtedness, other than Long-Term
Indebtedness, for any of the following:

(i) Payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed
for an original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from
the date originally incurred, of one year or less;

(i1) Payments under leases which are capitalized in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at
the option of the lessee for a period from the date originally incurred, of one year
or less; and

(i)  Payments under installment purchase contracts having an original
term of one year or less.

“State” means the State of New Hampshire.

“Tax Certificate” means, collectively, the Borrower’s Tax Certificate and
Certificate as to Arbitrage, both of even date herewith.

“Tax-Exempt Rate” initially means a variable rate of interest equal to the sum of
(1) the One-Month LIBOR plus 1.75 multiplied by seventy-five percent (75%).



“Temporarily Restricted Fund Balances” shall mean cash and cash equivalents
that have been set aside in a restricted fund(s) for use during the twelve months next
succeeding the date that such fund(s) was established.

“2007 Bonds™ shall mean the Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Monadnock Community Hospital
Issue), Series 2007.

#2009 Bonds” shall mean the Business Finance Authority of the State of New
Hampshire Revenue Bond, The Monadnock Community Hospital Issue (2009).

“UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted and in effect in the
State.

“Unassigned Rights” means the rights of the Issuer and its directors, officers,
employees and agents to payments and rights of indemnification under Sections 4.06,
7.03, 7.06(d) and 13.03; the right to give and receive notices, consents and approvals; and

the right to enforce the same.

“Unmatured Event of Default” means any occurrence, act or event that, with the
giving of notice, the passage of time or both, would constitute and Event of Default.

“Unrestricted Cash and Investments” shall mean unrestricted cash and unrestricted
cash equivalents plus unrestricted marketable securities. In calculating cash, there shall
be included balances in demand accounts and checking accounts (net of outstanding
drafts) and investments in marketable securities (other than (i) securities in funds held by
a bond trustee and (ii} gifts, grants or bequests which by their terms may not lawfully be
used to pay the Borrowers’ operating expenses or debt service) which are free and clear of
liens or claims of third parties (other than any right of set-off). Marketable securities
shall be valued at market value as of the date of determination. Unrestricted marketable
securities shall include investments designated by the Borrower’s Board of Directors that
may, upon resolution of said Board of Directors, be released for general operations.

“Unrestricted Net Assets” shall mean assets that bear no restrictions as to use by
parties unaffiliated with Borrower during the next twelve months.

Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. (a) The singular form of any word used
herein, including the terms defined in Section 1.01 hereof, shall include the plural, and
vice versa. The use herein of a word of any gender shall include correlative words of all
genders.

(b) Unless otherwise specified, references to Articles, Sections and other
subdivisions of this Agreement are to the designated Articles, Sections and other
subdivision of this Agreement as originally executed. The words “hereof,” “wherein,”
“hereunder” and words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole.



(c) The headings or titles of the several articles and sections shall be solely for
convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect of the
provisions hereof.

{d) Combined Documents. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto together
constitute the financing document and the security document under the Act, and as
evidence of indebtedness, this Agreement and the exhibits hereto constitute a Bond under
the Act.

ARTICLE 11

ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS AND TERMS OF LOAN

Section 2.02. Bond Purchase and Issuance; Loan to the Borrower; Application of
Loan Proceeds. The [ssuer hereby agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, to issue the Bonds in the amount of § on the Closing Date. The
Purchaser hereby agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to tender
$ to the Issuer to purchase the Bonds on the Closing Date. The Issuer hereby
agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to lend the Bond Proceeds
to the Borrower on the Closing Date. The Issuer assigns and pledges to the Purchaser its
rights as set forth in Section 2.04 herein, on the Closing Date. The Borrower hereby
agrees to borrow such amount from the Issuer on the Closing Date and to make payments
to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Upon fulfillment of the conditions set forth in Article III hereof, the Purchaser
shall deposit the Bond Proceeds on behalf of the Issuer as follows:

(i) the amount of [$ shall be deposited with Peoples United
Bank as successor trustee for the 2007 Bonds;

(iiy  the amount of $17,834,651.33 shall be deposited with Peoples United
Bank as trustee for the 2009 Bonds;

(iii)  any remaining amounts shall be deposited in the Expense Fund to be held
and disbursed as provided in this Agreement .

The Borrower’s obligation to make Debt Service Payments, which the Issuer
hereby is assigning to the Purchaser and which shall be the sole source of interest and
principal payments on the Bonds shall commence, and Interest shall begin to accrue, on
the date on which the Bonds are issued, as set forth on the Bonds as issued.

Neither the Purchaser nor the Issuer shall have any ownership interest in the
Property after the Closing Date and by this Agreement each is merely refinancing the
acquisition, construction and site development thereof by the Borrower. The Issuer has
not been in the chain of title of the Property, the Purchaser and the Issuer shall not
operate, control or have possession of the Property and the Purchaser and the Issuer have
no control over the Borrower or the Borrower’s operation, use or maintenance of the
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Property. The Borrower is solely responsible for the selection of the Property, and is
solely responsible for the use, maintenance and operation of the Property. The Borrower
will indemnify, defend and hold the Purchaser and the Tssuer and their respective
directors, officers, employees and agents {each, an “Indemnified Person™) harmless from
and against any claims, loss or damage, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to which an
Indemnified Person may be subjected as a result of the designation of any Indemnified
Person as the owner of the Property solely by virtue of the Loan, the Bonds or any
tfransaction contemplated pursuant to this Agreement. This indemnification shall survive
the payment in full of the Bonds and the Loan.

By executing this Agreement, the Borrower irrevocably covenants to pay and shal
pay to the Purchaser, as assignee of the Issuer, all Debt Service Payments, including each
and every payment due with respect to the Bonds and any other payment due fromthe
Borrower hereunder, other than payments due directly to the Issuer with respect to any
Unassigned Rights, which the Borrower hereby irrevocably covenants to pay and shall
pay to the Issuer.

Section 2.03. Interest. (a) The principal portion of the Bonds outstanding from
time to time shall bear interest (computed on the basis of actual days elapsed in a
365/366-day year) at the Tax-Exempt Rate. Interest accruing on such principal balance
outstanding from time to time shall be payable as provided in the Bonds, as set forth on
Exhibit C and upon earlier demand in accordance with the terms hereof and the Bonds.

(b) Upon the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability, the Borrower shall,
with respect to future interest payments, begin making Debt-Service Payments (and the
Bond Payments will be made) with the interest component calculated to equal the sum of
the Tax-Exempt Rate and the Gross-Up Rate. In addition, whether or not the
Determination of Taxability occurs before or after the Bonds and the Loan are paid in
full, the Borrower shall make immediately upon demand of the Purchaser a payment to
the Purchaser sufficient to pay the difference between all prior Debt-Service Payments
and related Bond Payments at the Tax-Exempt Rate and the Gross-Up Rate from the Date
of Taxability to the date of the Determination of Taxability.

Section 2.04. Payments. The Borrower shall pay to the Purchaser principal,
premium, if any, and Interest (“Bond Payments™), on the Bonds in such amounts and on
such dates as the Borrower shall be required to pay the Debt Service Payments, as and
when due under this Agreement, but only from the amounts paid by the Borrower
pursuant to this Agreement. The Borrower hereby agrees to pay the Debt Service
Payments and shall pay to the Purchaser, as assignee of the Issuer, the Debt Service
Payments in the amounts and on the dates set forth on Exhibit A hereto and in the Bonds
or in accordance with Sections 2.03, 2.07 or 13.03 of this Agreement. As security for its
obligation to pay principal, premium, if any, and any and all interest in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, the Issuer assigns to and pledges to the Purchaser all of the
Issuer’s right to receive Debt Service Payments from the Borrower hereunder, all of the
Issuer’s rights hereunder to amounts in the Expense Fund, and with the exception of the
Unassigned Rights and all of the Issuer’s right, title and interest in and to the Property,
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and the Issuer irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Purchaser and any present or future
officer or agent of the Purchaser as its lawful attorney, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, and in the name of the Issuer or otherwise, to collect the Debt Service
Payments and any other payments due hereunder except Unassigned Rights and to sue in
any court for such Debt Service Payments or other payments due hereunder, except with
respect to Unassigned Rights, to exercise all rights hereunder except Unassigned Rights
with respect to the Property, and to withdraw or settle any claims, suits or proceedings
pertaining to or arising out of this Agreement except Unassigned Rights upon any terms.
The Purchaser and the Borrower agree to such assignment. The lssuer hereby directs the
Borrower, and the Borrower hereby agrees, to pay to the Purchaser, as assignee of the
Issuer, Debt Service Payments, which payments, upon receipt by the Purchaser shall
constitute Bond Payments, in the amounts and on the dates set forth in Exhibit A hereto
and on the Bonds or in accordance with Sections 2.03, 2.07 or 13.03 and other payments
due hereunder or pursuant to the Bonds, except with respect to Unassigned Rights, shall
be made by the Borrower directly to the Purchaser, as the Issuer’s assignee, and all Debt
Service Payments shall be credited against the Issuer’s Bond Payments and any other
payment obligations hereunder.

No provision, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement or any
obligation herein imposed on the Issuer, or the breach thereof, shall constitute or give rise
to or impose upon the Issuer any pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general creditor
taxing powers of the State or any political subdivision thereof. The Issuer has no taxing
powers. In making the agreements, provisions and covenants set forth in this Agreement,
the Issuer has not obligated itself except with respect to the Property as and to the extent
provided in this Agreement, and the application of the Debt Service Payments to be paid
by the Borrower hereunder, as and to the extent provided in this Agreement.

All amounts required to be paid hereunder shall be paid in lawful money of the
United States of America in immediately available funds. No recourse shall be had by the
Purchaser or the Borrower for any claim based on this Agreement against the Issuer, the
State or any director, officer, employee or agent of the Issuer or of the State alleging

. personal liability on the part of such person, unless such claim is based on the willful

dishonesty of or intentional violation of law by such person.

Section 2.05. Payment on Non-Business Days. Whenever any payment to be
made hereunder shall be stated to be due on a day which is not a Business Day, such
payment may be made on the next succeeding Business Day, and such extension of time
shall in such case be included in the computation of interest or the fees hereunder, as the
case may be.

Section 2.06. Debt Service Pavments To Be Unconditional. The obligations of
the Borrower to make the Debt Service Payments required under this Article II and to
make other payments hereunder and to perform and observe the covenants and
agreements contained herein shall be absolute and unconditional in all events, without
abatement, diminution, deduction, setoff or defense for any reason, including (without
limitation) any accident, condemnation, destruction or unforeseen circumstances,
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Notwithstanding any dispute between the Borrower and any of the Issuer, the Purchaser
or any other person, the Borrower shall make all Debt Service Payments when due and
shall not withhold any Debt-Service Payments pending final resolution of such dispute,
nor shall the Borrower assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its obligation to
make such payments required under this Agreement, each of which rights is hereby
affirmatively waived by the Borrower.

Section 2.07. Prepayments.

(a) The Borrower shall prepay the Bonds in full immediately upon demand of
the Purchaser after the tenth (1 Olh) anniversary of the issuance of the Bonds.

(b) The Borrower shall prepay the Bonds in full immediately upon demand of
the Purchaser after the occurrence of an Event of Default, which is not cured within any
applicable grace or cure period, by paying the applicable Prepayment Amount and all
other amounts due hereunder.

(c) The Borrower shall prepay the Bond in full immediately upon demand of
the Purchaser after the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability by paying the
applicable Prepayment Amount and all other amounts due hereunder plus an amount
necessary to supplement the prior Debt-Service Payments to the Gross-Up Rate.

(d) Upon any prepayment in part of the Bond, the prepayment shall be applied
to the Debt Service Payments and any other amounts due hereunder.

(e) Notice of Prepayment. The Borrower shall give the Purchaser written
notice of any prepayment in whole or in part at least thirty (30) days before the
prepayment date specifying the date and amount of prepayment and the amount of
accrued interest and premium, if any. If less than all the principal of the Bonds are to be
prepaid on any date, the installments of principal shall be prepaid in chronological order.
Upon any subsequent transfer or exchange of a Bond upon which a prepayment is made,
the Issuer will make an appropriate notation on the Bond showing the prepaid installment
or installments.

Section 2.08. Expense Fund.

(a) Establishment and Purpose. An Expense Fund is hereby established with
the Disbursing Agent for the account of the Borrower (the “Expense Fund™).
Immediately after the sale of the Bonds and the deposits with the trustees for the
respective series of Refunded Bonds pursuant to Sections 2.02(i) and 2.02(ii) hereof, the
remaining proceeds shall be deposited in the Expense Fund. The moneys in the Expense
Fund shall be held in trust and, except as otherwise provided in this agreement, shall be
applied by the Disbursing Agent solely to the payment or reimbursement of Project Costs
in accordance with Section 9.01.



(b) Excess in Expense Fund. All moneys in the Expense Fund (including
moneys earned thereon by investment) remaining after payment or provision for payment
in full of the costs referred to in this Section 2.08 which are then due and payable shall
promptly at the written direction of a Borrower’s Representative be applied to the next
Debt Service Payment.

Section 2.10. Investment of Moneys in Fund. Pending their use under this
Agreement, moneys in the Expense Fund shall be held uninvested by the Disbursing
Agent.

Section 2.11. Tax-Exempt Status of Bonds. The Borrower will perform its
obligations and agreements contained in the Tax Certificate as if they were set forth
herein. The Issuer will cooperate with the Bondowner to the extent deemed necessary or
permitted by law in the opinion of bond counsel to the Issuer in order to preserve the
exclusion of interest on the Bond from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

ARTICLE III

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

The Purchaser’s agreement to purchase the Bonds from the Issuer hereunder and
to disburse the Bond Proceeds as provided herein shall be subject to the condition
precedent that the Purchaser shall have received all of the following, each in form and
substance satisfactory to the Purchaser. The Issuer's agreement to accept the Bond
Proceeds and to make the Loan to the Borrower hereunder and the Purchaser's agreement
to deliver the Bond Proceeds to the Borrower, shall be subject to the condition precedent
that the Purchaser and the Issuer shall have received all of the following, each in form and
substance satisfactory to the Purchaser and the lssuer:

(a) This Agreement, properly executed on behalf of the Issuer, the Borrower
and the Purchaser, and each of the Exhibits hereto properly completed.

) A Bond properly issued to the Purchaser as registered owner thereof, in the
principal face amount of $ and duly executed by the lssuer, dated the Closing
Date.

(c) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Borrower,
certifying as to (i) the resolutions of the board of directors and, if required, the members
of the Borrower, authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement
and the Tax Certificate and any related documents, (ii) the bylaws of the Borrower, and
(ii1) the signatures of the officers or agents of the Borrower authorized to execute and
deliver this Agreement and the Tax Certificate and other instruments, agreements and
certificates on behalf of the Borrower.

(d) Currently certified copies of the Articles of Association of the Borrower.
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(e) A Certificate of Good Standing issued as to the Borrower by the Secretary
of the State of the state of the Borrower's incorporation, not more than thirty (30) days
prior to the date hereof.

63 Certificates of the insurance required hereunder, approved by the
Purchaser, containing a lender’s loss payable clause or endorsement in favor of the
Purchaser.

(g) A completed and executed Form 8038 or evidence of filing thereof with
the Secretary of Treasury.

(h) A resolution or evidence of other official action taken by or on behalf of
the Issuer to authorize the transactions contemplated hereby.

(1) As applicable, financing statements executed by the Borrower, as debtor,
and naming the Purchaser, as secured party, and/or the original certificate of title or
manufacturer's certificate of origin and title application, if any, of the Personal Property as
subject to certificate of title laws.

M Current searches of appropriate filing offices showing that (i) no state or
federal tax liens have been filed and remain in effect against the Borrower, (ii) no
mortgage or financing statements have been filed and remain in effect against the
Borrower relating to the Property except those mortgage or financing statements filed by
the Borrower and the security interests set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto (the
“Permitted Liens™), (iii) the Borrower has duly filed all mortgage deeds and financing
statements necessary to perfect the security interests and mortgage liens on the Property
created pursuant to this Agreement and (iv) the Borrower has duly filed all financing
statements necessary to perfect the transfer of the Issuer’s interest in this Agreement and
the Debt-Service Payments.

) An opinion of Institution Counsel, addressed to the Purchaser, and the
Issuer, in a form acceptable to the Purchaser.

1)) An opinion of Hospital Counsel, addressed to the Purchaser, and the
Issuer, in a form acceptable to the Purchaser and the Issuer.

(m)  An opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Issuer, together with a
reliance letter addressed to the Purchaser.

(n) The Issuer’s Tax Certificate.
(0) The Tax Certificate.

(p) Payment of the Purchaser's fees, commissions and expenses required by
Section 14.01 hereof.
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(q) Payment of the Issuer's fees, commissions and expenses required by
Section 4.03 hereof.

(1) The Mortgage concerning the Real Property, properly executed on behalf
of the Borrower and the Purchaser.

(s) Certifications from an appropriate officer of the Borrower that the
representations and warranties of the Borrower contained in Article V hereof are correct
on and as of the date of the Bonds and the Loan as though made on and as of such date,

(t) Certifications from an appropriate officer of the Borrower that no event
has occurred and 1s continuing, or would result from the Bonds or the Loan, which
constitutes a Default or an Event of Default,

(w) A resolution of the Governor and Council of New Hampshire making the
findings required by the Act.

(v} A copy of all licenses and permits pertaining to the Borrower and its
business operations and the Project.

(w)  The Borrower shall have established and shall maintain its primary deposit
relationship with the Disbursing Agent.

() Evidence that the Property and the use thereof comply with all laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the
same including, but not limited to, all zoning, subdivision and environmental protection
laws, ordinances and regulations and acceptable evidence submitted to the Purchaser that all
required approvals and consents have been validly and irrevocably granted without
qualifications and that there are no actions or proceedings pending or threatened before any
court or administrative agency or governmental body at the time of Closing relating to the
proposed or actual use of the Property. All rights to appeal from any decision or
determination must have expired prior to the date of Closing.

(v) The Purchaser shall receive an assignment of Contracts, Subcontracts,
Licenses, Permits, Agreements, Warranties and Approvals.

(z) Such policies and amounts of hazard insurance (specifying all-risks or extended
coverage and containing a builders’ risk completed value endorsement), rental value
insurance, flood insurance (if the Property or any part thereof is in an area that has been
identified as an area having special flood hazards), liability insurance, workmen’s’
compensation insurance, and such other insurance as the Purchaser may request.

{aa) A full title search on the Property.

(bb) A receipt and certificate from Peoples United Bank regarding the
refunding of the Refunded Bonds.
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(cc)  Any other documents or items required by the Purchaser, the Issuer or
Bond Counsel.

ARTICLE IV

LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE ISSUER; RIGHTS OF THE ISSUER;
COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER

Section 4.01. Limited Obligation. Under no circumstances shall the Issuer be
obligated directly or indirectly to pay Project Costs, principal of or premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds or the Loan, or expenses of operation, maintenance and upkeep of
the Property except from Bond Proceeds, exclusive of funds received hereunder by the
Issuer for its own use. This Agreement does not create any debt of the State with respect
to the Property other than a special obligation of the Issuer acting on behalf of the State
pursuant to the Act. Nothing contained herein shall in any way obligate the State to raise
any money by taxation or use other public funds for any purpose in relation to the

“Property. Neither the State nor the Issuer shall pay or promise to pay any debt or meet

any financial obligation to any Person at any time in relation to the Property except (i)
from moneys received or to be received under the provisions hereof or derived from the
exercise of the Issuer's right hereunder, other than moneys received for its own purposes,
or (i1) as may be required by law other than the provisions of the Act. Nothing contained
in this Agreement shall be construed to require or authorize the Issuer to use or operate
the Property or to conduct any business enterprise in connection therewith. The Issuer
makes no representation or warranty that interest on the Bonds is or will continue to be
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes or exempt for state income
tax purposes.

Section 4.02. Rights and Duties of the Issuer.

(a) Remedies of the Issuer. Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this
Agreement, the Issuer shall have the right to take any action or make any decision with
respect to proceedings for indemnity against the liability of the Issuer and for collection
or reimbursement from sources other than moneys or property held under this Agreement
or subject to the lien hereof. The Issuer may enforce its rights under this Agreement
which have not been assigned to the Purchaser by legal proceedings for the specific
performance of any obligation contained herein or for the enforcement of any other
appropriate legal or equitable remedy, and may recover damages caused by any breach by
the Borrower of its obligations to the Issuer under this Agreement, including court costs,
reasonable attorney's fees and other costs and expenses incurred in enforcing such
obligations.

(b) Limitations on Actions. The Issuer shall not be required to monitor the
financial condition of the Borrower or the physical condition of the Property and, unless
otherwise expressly provided, shall not have any responsibility with respect to notices,
certificates or other documents filed with it hereunder. The Issuer shall not be required to




take notice of any breach or default except when given notice thereof by the Borrower.
The Issuer shall not be responsible for the payment of any rebate to the United States
under IRC § 148(f). The Issuer shall not be required to take any action unless indemnity
reasonably satisfactory to it is furnished for expenses or liability to be incurred therein
{other than the giving of notice). The Issuer, upon written request of the Purchaser, and
upon receipt of reasonable indemnity for expenses or liability, shall cooperate to the
extent reasonably necessary to enable the Purchaser to exercise any power granted to the
Purchaser by this Agreement. The lssuer shall be entitled to reimbursement pursuant to
Section 4.03 to the extent that it acts without previously obtaining full indemnity.

(c) Responsibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to the advice of counsel (who
may be counsel for any party) and shall be wholly protected as to any action taken or
omitted to be taken or other document furnished to it under this Agreement and
reasonably believed by it to be genuine. The Issuer shall not be liable for any action taken
by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be within the discretion or power
conferred upon it, or in good faith omitted to be taken by it and reasonably believed to be
beyond such discretion or power, or taken by it pursuant to any direction or instruction by
which it is governed under this Agreement or omitted to be taken by it by reason of the
lack of direction or instruction required for such action under this Agreement, or be
responsible for the consequences of any error of judgment reasonably made by it. When
any payment, consent or other action by the Issuer is called for by this Agreement, the
Issuer may defer such action pending such investigation or inquiry or receipt of such
evidence, if any, as it may require in support thercof. A permissive right or power to act
shall not be construed as a requirement to act, and no delay in the exercise of a right or
power shall affect the subsequent exercise thereof. The Issuer shall in no event be liable
for the application or misapplication of funds, or for other acts or defaults by any person
or entity except by its own directors, officers and employees. No recourse shall be had by
the Borrower or the Purchaser for any claim based on this Agreement against any
director, officer, employee or agent of the Issuer unless such claim is based upon the bad
faith, fraud or deceit of such person. No covenant, obligation or agreement of the Issuer
contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, obligation or agreement of
any present or future director, officer, employee or agent of the Issuer in his individual
capacity, and no person executing this Agreement shall be liable personally thereon or be

~subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 4.03. Costs and Expenses of the Issuer. The Borrower shall pay when
due the Issuer's Service Charge and shall prepay or reimburse the Tssuer within thirty (30)
days after notice for all expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) incurred by the
Issuer in connection with the execution, delivery, performance and enforcement under
this Agreement and all expenses reasonably incurred or advances reasonably made in the
exercise of the Issuer's rights or its performance of its obligations hereunder (collectively,
the “Additional Payments™). Any fees, expenses, reimbursements or other charges which
the Issuer may be entitled to receive from the Borrower hereunder, if not paid within
thirty (30} days of when they are due, shall bear a late charge equal to 5% of the amount
overdue, and if not paid within sixty (60) days, shall bear interest at 12% per annum; such
late charges shall be in addition to any late charges due to the Purchaser hereunder.
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Section 4.04, Matters to be Considered by the Issuer. In approving, concurring
in or consenting to action or in exercising any discretion or in making any determination
under this Agreement, the Issuer may consider the interests of the public, which shall
include the anticipated effect of any transaction on tax revenues and employment, as well
as the interests of the other parties hereto; provided, however, nothing herein shall be
construed as conferring on any person other than the other parties any right to notice,
hearing or participation in the Issuer's consideration, and nothing in this section shall be
construed as conferring on any of them any right additional to those conferred elsewhere
herein. Subject to the foregoing, the Issuer will not unreasonably withhold any approval
or consent to be given by it hereunder.

Section 4.05. Actions by the Issuer. Any action which may be taken by the
1ssuer hereunder shall be deemed sufficiently taken if taken on its behalf by its Chairman,
its Vice Chairman or its Executive Director or by any other director, officer or agent
whom it may designate from time to time.

Section 4.06. Indemnification by the Borrower. The Borrower, regardless of any
agreement to maintain insurance, shall indemnify and save harmless, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the Issuer and its directors, officers, employees and agents from and
against (a) any and all claims by or on behalf of any person arising out of (1) any
condition of the Property, or (2) the acquisition, or operation of the Property or any work
or anything whatsoever done or omitted to be done on or about the Property, or (3) any
accident, injury or damage whatsoever to any person occurring on or about the Property,
or (4) any breach or default by the Borrower of or in any of its obligations hereunder, or
(5) any act or omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants,
employees or licensees, or (6) the offering, issuance, sale or any resale of this Agreement
or the Loan, but only to the extent permitted by law, and (b) any and all costs, counsel
fees, expenses or liabilities reasonably incurred in connection with any such claim or any
action or proceeding brought thereon. In case any action or proceeding is brought against
the lssuer or any such director, officer, employee or agent by reason of any such claim,
the Borrower upon notice from the affected party shall resist or defend such action or
proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, the Issuer shall cooperate and join with the
Borrower, at the expense of the Borrower, as may be required in connection with any
action or defense by the Borrower.

Section 4.07. Covenants of the [ssuer.

The Issuer covenants for the benefit of the Purchaser, as follows:

(a) The Issuer will not pledge, mortgage or assign this Agreement (except for
the pledge, mortgage or assignment of rights or privileges not assigned to the Purchaser)
or its duties and obligations hereunder to any person, firm or corporation, except as
provided under the terms hereof.



(b) The Issuer will submit or cause to be submitted to the IRS an IRS Form
8038 Information Return for Tax-Exempt Private Activity Bond Issues (or other
information reporting statement) at the time and in the form required by the Code.

ARTICLE V

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF
THE BORROWER

The Borrower represents, warrants and covenants for the benefit of the Purchaser
and the Issuer, as follows:

(a) The Monadnock Community Hospital is a nonprofit voluntary corporation
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State, has
power to enter into this Agreement and by proper corporate action has duly authorized the
execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Tax Certificate. The Borrower is in
good standing and is duly licensed or qualified to transact business in the State and in all
jurisdictions where the character of the property owned or leased or the nature of the
business transacted by it makes such licensing or qualification necessary.

(b)  The Borrower has been fully authorized to execute and deliver this
Agreement, and the Tax Certificate under the terms and provisions of the resolution of its

- boards of directors, or by other appropriate official approval, and further represent,

covenant and warrant that all requirements have been met, and procedures have occurred
in order to ensure the enforceability of this Agreement and the Tax Certificate, and this
Agreement and the Tax Certificate have been duly authorized, executed and delivered.

(c) The officer of the Borrower executing this Agreement and the Tax
Certificate and any related documents has been duly authorized to execute and deliver
this Agreement, and the Tax Certificate and such related documents under the terms and
provisions of a resolution of the Borrower's board of directors.

(d) This Agreement and the Tax Certificate constitute valid and legally
binding obligations of the Borrower, enforceable against the Borrower in accordance with
their respective terms, except to the extent limited by bankruptcy, reorganization or other
laws of general application relating to effecting the enforcement of creditors rights.

(e) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the Tax Certificate, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and the fulfillment of the terms
and conditions hereof do not and will not violate any law, rule, regulation or order,
conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms or conditions of the articles of
agreement or bylaws of the Borrower or of any corporate restriction or of any agreement
or instrument to which the Borrower is now a party and do not and will not constitute a
default under any of the foregeing or result in the creation or imposition of any liens,
charges or encumbrances of any nature upon any of the property or assets of the Borrower
contrary to the terms of any instrument or agreement.
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() The authorization, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement
by the Borrower does not require submission to, approval of, or other action by any
governmental authority or agency, which action with respect to this Agreement has not
been taken and which 1s final and non-appealable.

(g)  There is no action, suit, proceeding, claim, inquiry or investigation, at law
or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body pending or,
to the best of the Borrower’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Borrower,
challenging the Borrower’s authonty to enter into this Agreement, or to execute and
deliver the Tax Certificate or any other action wherein an unfavorable ruling or finding
would adversely affect the enforceability of this Agreement, or the Tax Certificate or the
exclusion of the Interest from gross income for federal tax purposes under the Code, or
would materially and adversely affect any of the transactions contemplated by this

" Agreement.

(h) The Property is properly zoned for its current and anticipated use and the
use of the Property will not violate any applicable zoning, land use, environmental or
similar law or restriction. The Borrower has all licenses and permits to use the Property
and to construct any improvements contemplated to be constructed thereon. The
Borrower has obtained all permits, licenses and other authorizations which are required
under federal, state and local laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases of pollutants,

- contaminants, hazardous or toxic materials, or wastes into ambient air, surface water,

ground water or land, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution,
use, reatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of pollutants, contaminants or
hazardous or toxic materials or wastes (“Environmental Laws™) at the Borrower’s
facilities or in connection with the operation of its facilities. Except as previously

" disclosed to the Purchaser in writing, the Borrower and all activities of the Borrower at its

facilities comply with all Environmental Laws and with all terms and conditions of any
required permits, licenses and authorizations applicable to the Borrower with respect
thereto. Except as previously disclosed to the Purchaser in writing, the Borrower is also in
compliance with all limitations, restrictions, conditions, standards, prohibitions,
requirements, obligations, schedules and timetables contained in Environmental Laws or
contained in any plan, order, decree, judgment or notice of which the Borrower is aware.
Except as previously disclosed to the Purchaser in writing, the Borrower is not aware of]
nor has the Borrower received notice of, any events, conditions, circumstances, activities,
practices, incidents, actions or plans which may interfere with or prevent continued
compliance with, or which may give rise to any liability under, any Environmental Laws.

(1) To the Borrower’s knowledge, the Property is of the type authorized and
permitted to be financed under the Act.

q) The Borrower intends to use the Property, or cause the Property to be used,
as a “project,” within the meaning of the Act, until the date on which the Bonds have

- been paid in full and are no longer outstanding and all of the Debt Service Payments have

been fully paid.
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(m) All financial and other information provided to the Purchaser by or on
behalf of the Borrower in connection with the Borrower’s request for the Loan
contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material respects and, as to projections,
valuations or pro forma financial statements, present a good faith opinion as to such
projections, valuations and pro forma condition and results.

(n) The Borrower has provided to the Purchaser financing statements in the
appropriate form for due filing as a financing statement with the office of the New
Hampshire Secretary of State, (the “Filing Office”) pursuant to the New Hampshire
Uniform Commercial Code. The filing of the Financing Statement in the oftfice of the
Filing Office will perfect a security interest in the Personal Property with respect to (i)
those items of personal property in which a security interest may be perfected by filing in
the Filing Office and (ii) those items of personal property delivered to the Borrower.
When such financing statements are filed in the offices noted therein and to the extent the
Borrower has rights in the Personal Property, the Purchaser, as assignee of the Issuer, will
have a valid and perfected security interest in the Personal Property and, pursuant to the
Mortgage, in the Real Property, subject to no other mortgage, security interest,
assignment, lien or encumbrance (other than Permitted Liens).

(0) The representations contained in the Tax Certificate are true and correct as
of the date hereof. The Borrower will comply fully at all times with the Tax Certificate,
and the Borrower will not take any action, or omit to take any action, which, if taken or
omitted, respectively, would violate the Tax Certificate.

{p) No part of the Bond Proceeds will be used to finance inventory or rolling
stock or will be used for working.

(q)  To the best knowledge of the Borrower, the Property is of the character
subject to the allowance for depreciation under Section 167 of the Code; the Borrower
has verified the representation contained in this subsection (q) with a duly qualified,
independent, certified public accountant and, based on that consultation and on other facts
known to the Borrower, the Borrower has no reason to believe that the Property 1s not
property of the character subject to the allowance for depreciation under Section 167 of
the Code.

() No person other than the Borrower is in occupancy or possession of any
portion of the Real Property except as set forth in the Permitted Liens.

(s) All approvals of and authorization or other action by any federal or state
governmental authority that, to the best knowledge of the Borrower, are required to be
obtained by the Borrower in connection with the execution, delivery or performance of
this Agreement or the transactions contemplated thereby, have been obtained.
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ARTICLE VI

TITLE TO PROPERTY; MORTGAGE AND SECURITY INTEREST

Section 6.01. Title to the Property. The Borrower has legal title to the Property.
The Borrower will at all times protect and defend, at its own cost and expense, its title
from and against all claims, liens and legal processes of creditors of the Borrower, and
keep all Property free and clear of all such claims, liens and processes except for the

. Permitted Liens.

Section 6.02. Security Interest in Personal Property. This Agreement is intended
to constitute a security agreement within the meaning of the UCC. As security forthe
Borrower’s payment to the Purchaser, as assignee of the Issuer, of Debt Service Payments
and all other amounts payable to the Purchaser hereunder or under any other document or
agreement related to the .oan or the Bonds, the Borrower hereby grants to the Purchaser,
a security interest and lien on all its Gross Receipts and Personal Property. The security
interest in the Gross Receipts and Personal Property, including all repairs, replacements,
substitutions and modifications thereto or thereof and all proceeds of the foregoing,
constitutes the only lien on the Gross Receipts and Personal Property, with the exception
of the Permitted Liens. The Issuer and the Borrower agree to execute such additional
documents, including financing statements, assignments, affidavits, notices and similar
instruments, in form satisfactory to the Purchaser, and take such other actions that the
Purchaser deems necessary or appropriate to establish, maintain and terminate, as the case
may be, the security interests created by this Section. If requested by the Purchaser, the
Borrower shall conspicuously mark the Personal Property with appropriate lettering,
labels or tags, and maintain such markings, so as clearly to disclose the Purchaser's
security interest in the Personal Property.

Section 6.03  Further Assurance. The Issuer and the Borrower agree to execute
such additional documents, including financing statements, assignments, affidavits,
notices and similar instruments, in form satisfactory to the Purchaser, and take such other
actions that the Purchaser deems necessary or appropriate to establish, maintain and
terminate, as the case may be, the security interests created by this Section,

Section 6.04. Change in Name. Corporate Structure or State of Organization of
the Borrower; Change in [.ocation of the Borrower’s Principal Place of Business. The
Borrower’s chief executive office is located at the address set forth herein, and all of the
Borrower’s records relating to its business are kept at such location. The Borrower
hereby agrees to provide written notice to the Purchaser and the Issuer of any change or
proposed change in its name, corporate structure, state of organization, place of business
or chief executive office or change or proposed change in the location of the Personal
Property. Such notice shall be provided in writing 30 days in advance of the date that
such change or proposed change is planned to take effect. The Borrower currently does
business, and has done business, under the name(s) of Monadnock Health Services ,The

. Bond Wellness Center at Monadnock Community Hospital, Monadnock Pulmonary

Associates, Monadnock Internists, Monadnock Family Care, New Ipswich Family
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Medicine, Jaffrey Family Medicine, Peterborough Internal Medicine, Antrim Medical
Group, Monadnock Behavioral Health, Monadnock Regional Pediatrics, Monadnock
Surgical Associates, Rindge Family Practice and Monadnock Healthy Tecth

Section 6.05. Liens and Encumbrances to Title. The Borrower shall not directly
or indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge,
encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the Property (together, “Liens”) other than the
respective rights of the Purchaser and the [ssuer as herein provided and the Permitted
Liens. The Borrower shall promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be
necessary duly to discharge or remove any such Lien except for the Permitted Liens.

Section 6.06. Personal Property. The parties hereby agree that the Personal
Property 1s, and during the period this Agreement is in force will remain, personal
property and, when subjected to use by the Borrower hereunder, will not be or become
fixtures; provided, however, that if contrary to the parties' intent the Personal Property is
or may be deemed to be a fixture, the Borrower shall cause filings to be made with the
applicable government officials or filing offices to create and preserve for the Purchaser
as assignee of the Issuer a perfected security interest in the Personal Property, subject to
the Permitted Liens.

Section 6.07. Agreement as Financing Statement. To the extent permitted by

‘ applicable law, a carbon, photographic or other reproduction of this Agreement or of any

financing statements authorized by the Borrower is sufficient as a financing statement in
any state to perfect the security interests granted in this Agreement to the extent that the
Borrower has rights in the Property.

ARTICLE V11

AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

So long as the Loan and the Bonds shall remain unpaid, the Borrower will comply
with the following requirements, unless the Purchaser shall otherwise consent in writing:

Section 7.01. Reporting Requirements. The Borrower will deliver, or cause to be
delivered, to the Purchaser each of the following, which shall be in form and detail
acceptable to the Purchaser:

(a) as soon as available, and in any event within one hundred twenty (120)
days after the end of the fiscal year of the Borrower, audited financial statements of the
Borrower prepared by independent certified public accountants selected by the Borrower
and acceptable to the Purchaser, which annual financial statements shall include the
balance sheet of the Borrower as at the end of such fiscal year and the related statements
of income, net assets and cash flows of the Borrower for the fiscal year then ended, all in
reasonable detail and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles applied on a basis consistent with the accounting practices applied in the

‘financial statements referred to in Article V hereof, together with (i) a report of such
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accountants stating that in making the investigations necessary for its audit report they
obtained no knowledge, except as specifically stated, of any Default or Event of Default
hereunder and (1) a certificate of the chief financial officer of the Borrower stating that
such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with the accounting practices reflected
in the annual financial statements referred to in Article V hereof and that, to the best of
such officer's knowledge, there has not occurred any Default or Event of Default
hereunder; or if such a Default or Event of Default has occurred, stating in reasonable
detail the facts with respect thereto;

(b) as soon as available, and in any event within forty-five (45) days after the
end of each quarter, management prepared quarterly financial statements of the Borrower
and its affiliates, including a balance sheet and an income statement;

(c) as soon as available, and in any event within forty-five (45) days after the
end of each quarter, a fully executed compliance certificate, showing that the Borrower is
in compliance with the covenants set forth in Section 7.08 below;

(d) promptly deliver upon receipt thereof, copies of any reports or
management letters submitted to the Borrower by the Borrower’s accountants in
connection with any examination of the financial statements of the Borrower made by
such accountants.

(e) as soon as available, and in any event within sixty (60) days after the end
of the prior fiscal year, the Borrower will submit to the Purchaser, proposed operating and
capital budgets for the then current fiscal year;

H within forty-five (45) days after the end of each fiscal quarter, the
Borrower will submit to the Purchaser a summary of utilization statistics for the reporting
period;

(g) as promptly as practicable (but in any event not later than ten (10)
Business Days) after an officer of the Borrower obtains knowledge of the occurrence of
any event that constitutes a Default or an Event of Default hereunder, notice of such
occurrence, together with a detailed statement by a responsible officer of the Borrower of
the steps being taken by the Borrower to cure the effect of such Default or Event of
Default;

(h) promptly upon knowledge thereof, notice of any material loss or
destruction of or damage to the Property or of any material adverse change in the
Property;

(i) promptly after the amending thereof, copies of any and all material
amendments to its certificate of incorporation, articles of association or bylaws; and
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(1 promptly upon knowledge thereof, notice of any material violation by the
Borrower of any law, rule or regulation.

(k) such other financial or statistical information or reports as the Purchaser
may reasonably request.

Section 7.02. Books and Records; Inspection and Examination. The Borrower
will keep accurate books of record and account for themselves pertaining to the Property
and pertaining to the Borrower’s business and financial condition and such other matters
as the Purchaser may from time to time request in which true and complete entries will be
made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied
and, upon request of the Purchaser, will permit any officer, employee, attormey or
accountant for the Purchaser to audit, review, make extracts from, or copy any and all
corporate and financial books, records and properties of the Borrower at all times during
ordinary business hours and following reasonable notice to the Borrower, and to discuss
the affairs of the Borrower with any of its directors, officers, employees or agents. The
Borrower will permit the Purchaser, or its employees, accountants, attorneys or agents, to
examine and copy any or all of its records and to examine and inspect the Property at any
time during the Borrower’s business hours, following reasonable notice to the Borrower.
Nothing in this section shall violate patient confidentiality laws and regulations.

Section 7.03. Compliance with Laws: Environmental Indemnity. The Borrower
will (a) comply with the requirements of applicable laws and regulations, the non-
compliance with which would materially and adversely affect its business or its financial
condition, {b) comply with all applicable environmental, hazardous waste or substance,
toxic substance and underground storage laws and regulations and obtain any permits,
licenses or similar approvals required by any such laws or regulations, and {c) use the
Property, and will require that others use the Property, only for lawful purposes, without
violation of any federal, state or local law, statute or ordinance. The Borrower shall
secure all permits and licenses, if any, necessary for the use and operation of the Property.
The Borrower shall comply in all respects (including, without limitation, with respect to
the use, maintenance and operation of the Property) with all laws of the jurisdictions in
which its operations involving any component of the Property may extend and of any
legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body exercising any power or jurisdiction
over the items of the Property or its interest or rights under this Agreement. The
Borrower will indemnify, defend and hold the Purchaser and the Issuer harmless from and
against any claims, loss or damage to which the Purchaser or the Issuer may be subjected
as a result of any past, present or future existence, use, handling, storage, transportation or
disposal of any hazardous waste or substance or toxic substance by the Borrower on
property owned, leased or controlled by the Borrower. This indemnification shall survive
the termination of this Agreement and payment of the indebtedness hereunder.

Section 7.04. Payment of Taxes and Other Claims. The Borrower will pay or
discharge, when due, (a) all taxes, assessments and governmental charges levied or
imposed upon its income or profits, upon any properties belonging to it (including,
without limitation, the Property or upon or against the creation, perfection or continuance
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of the security interest created pursuant to this Agreement, prior to the date on which
penalties attach thereto, (b) all federal, state and local taxes required to be withheld by it,
and (c) all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies which, if unpaid, might by law
become a Lien or charge upon any properties of the Borrower; provided, that the
Borrower shall not be required to pay any such tax, assessment, charge or claim whose
amount, applicability or validity is being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings. The Borrower will pay, as the same respectively come due, all taxes and
governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be lawfully assessed
or levied against or with respect to the Property, as well as all gas, water, steam,
electricity, heat, power, telephone, utility and other charges incurred in the operation,
maintenance, use, occupancy and upkeep of the Property; provided, that the Borrower
shall not be required to pay any such tax, assessment or charge whose amount,
applicability or validity is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Borrower shall be required to pay the tax, assessment
or charge (even if it is being contested in good faith) if the applicable taxing authority
exercises any right to seize or otherwise encumber the Property.

Section 7.05. Maintenance of Property. (a) The Borrower shall, at its own
expense, maintain, preserve and keep the Property in good repair, working order and
condition, and shall from time to time make all repairs and replacements necessary to
keep the Property in such condition, and in compliance with state and federal laws,
ordinary wear and tear excepted. In the event that any parts or accessories forming part of
" any item or items of Personal Property become worn out, lost, destroyed, damaged
beyond repair or otherwise rendered unfit for use, the Borrower, at its own expense and
expeditiously, will replace or cause the replacement of such parts or accessories by
replacement parts or accessories free and clear of all liens and encumbrances and with a
value and utility at least equal to that of the parts or accessories being replaced (assuming
that such replaced parts and accessories were otherwise in good working order and
repair). All such replacement parts and accessories shall be deemed to be incorporated
immediately into and to constitute an integral portion of the Personal Property and, as
such, shall be subject to the terms of this Agreement. Neither the Purchaser nor the Issuer
shall have any responsibility in any of these matters, or for the making of improvements
or additions to the Property.

(b) The Borrower will defend the Property against all claims or demands of all
Persons (other than the Purchaser) claiming the Property or any interest therein.

(c) The Borrower will keep the Property free and clear of all mortgage,
security interests, liens and encumbrances except the security interest created pursuant to
this Agreement and the Permitted Liens.

Section 7.06. Insurance. (a) The Borrower shall, at its own expense, procure and
maintain continuously in effect: (i) commercial general liability insurance for personal
injuries, death or damage to or loss of property arising out of or in any way relating to the
Property, with a coverage limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, (i1) insurance
against such hazards as the Purchaser may reasonably require, including, but not limited
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to, all-risk casualty and property insurance, in an amount equal to the full replacement
cost of the Property; and (iii) an umbrella policy in the amount of $5,000,000.

(b) If required by State law, the Borrower shall carry workers compensation
insurance covering all employees on, in, near or about the Property, and upon request,
shall furnish to the Purchaser certificates evidencing such coverage.

(c) All insurance policies required by this Article shall be taken out and
maintained with responsible and reputable insurance companies authorized to transact
business in the State, and shall contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or
revise coverage thereunder without giving written notice to the insured parties at least
thirty (30) days before the cancellation or revision becomes effective. All insurance
policies required by this Article shall not be subject to any co-insurance clause. Each
insurance policy required by this Article shall name the Purchaser as an additional insured

~ party, mortgagee and loss payee without regard to any breach of warranty or other act or

omission of the Borrower and shall include a lender's loss payable endorsement for the
benefit of the Purchaser and require twenty (20) days advance notice of cancellation, non-
removal or any material change. Prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement,
the Borrower shall provide the Purchaser with evidence of such insurance and, prior to
the expiration thereof, shall provide the Purchaser evidence of all renewals or
replacements thereof.

(d) As among the Purchaser, the Borrower and the Issuer, the Borrower
assumes all risks and liabilities from any cause whatsoever, whether or not covered by
insurance, for loss or damage to any Property and for injury to or death of any person or
damage to any property, whether such injury or death be with respect to agents or
employees of the Borrower or of third parties, and whether such property damage be to
the Borrower's property or the property of others. Whether or not covered by insurance,
the Borrower hereby assumes responsibility for and agree to reimburse the Purchaser and
the Issuer for and will indemnify, defend and hold the Purchaser and the Issuer harmless
from and against all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions,
costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees) of whatsoever kind and nature,
imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Purchaser or the Issuer that in any way
relate to or arise out of this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby and the
Property, including but not limited to, (i) the selection, manufacture, purchase, acceptance
or rejection of the Property or the ownership of the Property, (ii) the delivery, lease,
possession, maintenance, use, condition, return or operation of the Property, (iii) the
condition of the Property sold or otherwise disposed of after possession by the Borrower,
(iv) any patent or copyright infringement, (v) the conduct of the Borrower, its officers,
employees and agents, (vi) a breach of the Borrower of any of its covenants or obligations
hereunder, and (vii) any claim, loss, cost or expense involving alleged damage to the
environment relating to the Property, including, but not limited to, investigation, removal,
cleanup and remedial costs. All amounts payable by the Borrower pursuant to the
immediately preceding sentence shall be paid immediately upon demand of the Issuer or
the Purchaser, as the case may be. This provision shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.
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Section 7.07. Preservation of Corporate Existence, Tax Exempt Status and Bank
Qualified Status. The Borrower will preserve and maintain its corporate existence and

all of its rights, privileges and franchises necessary or desirable in the normal conduct of

. its business; shall maintain its status as an organization exempt from taxation under

Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3); and shall conduct its business in an orderly,
efficient and regular manner.

Section 7.08. Financial Covenants. The Borrower shall comply with the
following obligations:

(a) Debt Service Coverage: The Borrower shall maintain a minimum rotling
Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.50x. This ratio will be tested quarterly, commencing
with receipt of the March 31, 2013 financial statements delivered pursuant to Section
7.01(b) of this Agreement.

(b) Days Cash on Hand: The Borrower shall maintain a minimum of 75 Days
Cash on Hand. This ratio will be tested semi-annually commencing with receipt of the
June 30, 2013 financial statements delivered pursuant to Section 7.01(b) of this
Agreement.

(c) Debt to Capitalization: The Borrower shall maintain a maximum Debt to
Capitalization Ratio of sixty percent (60%). This ratio will be tested semi-annually
commencing with receipt of the June 30, 2013 financial statements delivered pursuant to
Section 7.01(b) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII

NEGATIVE COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees that from the date hereof until
satisfaction in full of the Loan and the Bonds, it will not do any one or more of the

. following without first obtaining the written consent of the Purchaser:

Section 8.01. Liens and Additional Indebtedness.

(a) The Borrower will not create, incur or suffer to exist any mortgage, deed
of trust, pledge, lien, security interest, assignment or transfer upon or of any of the
Property, except for (i) the mortgage and security interests created pursuant to this
Agreement and the Mortgage, (ii) the assignment of Contracts, Subcontracts, Licenses,
Permits, Agreements, Warranties and Approvals, (i1i) the Permitted Liens, and (iv) liens
arising in connection with workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, or social
security obligations.

(b) The Borrower will not create, assume, guarantee, or otherwise become or
remain directly or indirectly liable with respect to any additional Indebtedness other than
(a) Indebtedness to the Purchaser; (b) Indebtedness obtained with the prior written

- consent of the Purchaser; (¢) Indebtedness arising under this Agreement; and (d)
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Indebtedness, capital leases or purchase money notes which does not exceed $750,000 in
any one Fiscal Year, provided the same is made on an unsecured basis or secured only
with the item being financed; provided, however, that the Purchaser hereby consents to
additional Indebtedness or capital leases or other purchase money notes in excess of
$750,000 in any Fiscal Year if (i) the Borrower gives the Purchaser fifteen (15) days prior
written notice of the Borrower’s intent to incur additional Indebtedness including the
amount and terms of the same, and (ii) the Purchaser determines that (A) no Event of
Default or Unmatured Event of Default has occurred or is existing under this Agreement,
and (B) the Borrower is then in compliance with all of the financial covenants set forth in
Section 7.08 hereof, and (C) the Borrower shall remain in compliance with all such
financial covenants, including without limitation, the Debt Service Coverage Ratio set
forth in Section 7.09(a) based upon the financial statements for the most recent fiscal
year, when the proposed additional indebtedness of the Borrower 1s added to all of the
Long-Term Indebtedness of the Borrower then outstanding.

Section 8.02. Sale or other Disposition of Assets. The Borrower will not sell,
lease, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets or the
Real Property or any of the Personal Property or any interest therein (whether in one
transaction or in a series of transactions) except that the Borrower may replace worn or
obsolete Personal Property with property of equal or greater value and utility. The
Borrower will not lease any of the Real Property having annual rental payments greater
than $50,000, without the Purchaser 's consent, not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed.

Section 8.03. Consolidation and Merger. Except as expressly provided in this
Section 8.03, the Borrower will not consolidate with or merge into any Person, or permit
any other Person to merge into it, or acquire (in a transaction analogous in purpose or
effect to a consolidation or merger) all or substantially all the assets of any other Person.

Section 8.04, Accounting. The Borrower will not adopt, permit or consent to any
material change in accounting principles other than as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. The Borrower will not adopt, permit or consent to any change in
its fiscal year, without the prior written consent of the Purchaser.

Section 8.05. Tax Exemption. The Borrower will not take any action or permit
any action within its control to be taken that would cause any Interest to become
includable in gross income of the recipient for federal income tax purposes under the
Code (including, without limitation, intentional acts under Treas, Reg. § 1.148-2(c) ora
deliberate action within the meaning of Treas. Reg. § 1.141-2(d)(3)), and the Borrower
will take and will cause its officers, employees and agents to take all affirmative actions
legally within its power necessary to ensure that such Interest does not become includable
in gross income of the recipient for federal income tax purposes under the Code
(including, without limitation, the calculation and payment of any rebate required to
preserve such exclusion).
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ARTICLE IX

PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE

Section 9.01. Costs of Issuance. The Borrower will pay (subject, however, to the
limitations set forth in the Tax Certificate) from the Expense Account established under
Section 2.08 via requisition from the Borrower the costs of 1ssuing the Bonds including
the fees and expenses of bond counsel, the Issuer, the Purchaser, Borrower’s counsel and
advisors and any recording or similar fees, in accordance with this Agreement.

ARTICLE X
DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OR TAKING OF THE PROPERTY

Section 10.01. Recovery of Insurance Proceeds. In the event of material damage
to or destruction of all or any part of the Property, the parties will cooperate in order to
recover any applicable proceeds of insurance under Section 7.06. After the happening of
any casualty causing material damage to the Project, the Borrower shall give prompt
written notice thereof to the Purchaser, and there shall be no abatement or reduction in the
payments required to be made by the Borrower under this Agreement. Material Damage
in this context shall mean either {a) damages to any property in excess of $500,000 or (b)
damages that will materially adversely affect continuing operations,

In the event of the destruction of any part of the Project or any damage thereto, all
proceeds in excess of $500,000 of insurance (after payment of any costs of collection)
shall be paid to the Borrower and held in a separate account and, so long as no Default
under this Agreement shall have occurred and be continuing and such proceeds shall be
applied for the restoration of the Project by the Borrower. If such proceeds are
insufficient for such restoration, the Borrower will provide for payment of the costs of
completion from its own moneys. Any insurance proceeds remaining after payment of all
such costs shall, so long as no Default under this Agreement shall have occurred and be
continuing, be paid to the Borrower. However, if within ninety (90) days after the
damage or destruction, the Borrower determines in good faith that (i) the Project cannot

‘be reasonably restored within a period of twelve (12) months from the date of such

damage or destruction, or (ii} the Borrower 1s thereby prevented from carrying on its
normal operation of the Property for a period of six (6) months from the date of such
damage or destruction and the Borrower so notifies the Purchaser in writing, the
Borrower shall not be obligated to restore the Property and the net insurance proceeds
shall be used as directed by the Purchaer.

Section 10.02. Eminent Domain. Should the Project or any material part thereof
be taken or damaged by reason of any public improvement or condemnation proceeding
or in any other manner (a “Taking”)}, or should the Borrower receive any notice or other
information regarding such proceeding, the Borrower shall give prompt written notice
thereof to the Purchaser and there shall be no abatement or reduction in the payments
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required to be made by the Borrower under this Agreement. A Material Taking in this
context shall mean either (a) condemnation to any property in excess of $500,000 or (b)
condemnation that will materially adversely affect continuing operations.

In the event of any such Material Taking in excess of $500,000 so long as no
Default under this Agreement shall have occurred and be continuing the Borrower shall
repair or reconstruct the Property to make the Property adequate for the continuance of
the Borrower’s business operations at the Project site. The compensation, awards,
damages, rights of action and proceeds awarded to the Borrower in connection with such
Taking, net of costs of collection, if any (the “Proceeds™), shall be deposited by the
Borrower in a separate account with the Disbursing Agent. Upon the completion of such
restoration, the Disbursing Agent shall, so long as no Default under this Agreement shall
have occurred or be continuing, release the balance, if any, of the Proceeds to the
Borrower, provided, however, that if, in the event of any Taking, the Borrower is not
permitted to restore the Property or the Borrower fails to restore the Property within six
months of such election, the Proceeds shall promptly be deposited or transferred as
directed by the Purchaser.

ARTICLE XI

ASSIGNMENT AND SELLING

Section 11.01. Transfer and Assignment by the Purchaser. This Agreement, and
the right to receive payments hereunder, may be assigned and reassigned in whole to any
assignee or subassignee by the Purchaser at any time subsequent to its execution, upon
transfer of the Bonds by the Purchaser to a subsequent registered owner of the Bonds. No
such transfer and assignment or reassignment shall be effective unless and until the Issuer
and the Borrower shall have received notice of the transfer and assignment or
reassignment disclosing the name and address of the assignee or subassignee and unless
and until the Issuer shall have issued a new Bond, naming the transferee and assignee as
registered owner (which the Issuer shall have no obligation to do unless and until the
Issuer has first received a canceled Bond naming the Purchaser as registered owner).
Upon receipt of notice of assignment, the Borrower shall furnish a new Bond to the
transferee and assignee upon receipt of a cancelled Bond from the Purchaser and a duly
executed assumption of the Purchaser’s obligations under this Agreement by the
transferce and assignee, and the Borrower shall thenceforth make all payments to the
transferee and assignee designated in the notice of assignment, notwithstanding any
claim, defense, setoff or counterclaim whatsoever (whether arising from a breach of this
Agreement or otherwise) that the Issuer and the Borrower may from time to time have
against the Purchaser or the assignee. Upon any such transfer and assignment, the
Purchaser shall indemnify the Issuer and hold the Issuer harmless from and against all
liabilities of the Issuer arising in connection with the cancellation of the Bond naming the
Purchaser as registered owner and the issuance of a new Bond naming the transferee as
registered owner. Subject to the foregoing, the Issuer and the Borrower agree to execute
all documents, including notices of assignment and financing statements, which may be
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reasonably requested by the Purchaser or its assignee to protect their interest in the
Property and in this Agreement; provided, however, that the Issuer, the Borrower shall be
reimbursed by the Purchaser for all costs incurred by the Issuer in connection therewith.

Section 11.02. No Sale or Assignment by the Borrower. This Agreement and the
interest of the Borrower in the Property may not be sold, assumed, assigned or
encumbered by the Borrower without the prior written consent of the Purchaser, except in
the cases of (i) Permitted Liens, (i1) obsolete equipment and facilities, or (iii) items
abandoned or replaced in the ordinary course of business.

ARTICLE XII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 12.01. Events of Default. The following constitute “Events of Default” or
singularly an “Event of Default” under this Agreement:

(a) failure by the Borrower to pay to the Purchaser, as assignee of the Issuer,
within five (5) days of when due any Debt Service Payment or to pay any other payment
required to be paid hereunder;

(b) failure by the Borrower to maintain insurance on the Property in
accordance with Section 7.06 hereof;

(9  failure by the Borrower to observe, comply with and/or perform the
covenants, conditions and agreements set forth in Article VIIT hereof’

{(d) failure by the Borrower or the Issuer to observe and perform any other
covenant, condition or agreement of the Borrower or the Issuer, respectively, contained
herein, in the Borrower’s Tax Certificate or in any other document or agreement executed
in connection herewith on its part to be observed or performed for a period of thirty (30)
days after written notice is given to the Borrower or the Issuer, as the case may be,
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied; provided, however, that, if the
failure stated in such notice cannot be corrected within such 30-day period, the Purchaser
will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective
action is instituted by the Borrower or the Issuer, as the case may be, within the
applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected;

(e) initiation by the Issuer of a proceeding under any federal or state
bankruptcy or insolvency law seeking relief under such laws concerning the indebtedness
of the Issuer;

(f) the Borrower shall be or become insolvent, or admit in writing its inability
to pay its debts as they mature, or make an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or the
Borrower shall apply for or consent to the appointment of any receiver, trustee or similar
officer for them or for all or any substantial part of its property; or such receiver, trustee
or similar officer shall be appointed without the application or consent of the Borrower
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(and shall not have been dismissed within forty-five (45) days); or the Borrower shall
institute (by petition, application, answer, consent or otherwise) any bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, liquidation or
similar proceeding relating to them under the laws of any jurisdiction; or any such
proceeding shall be instituted (by petition, application or otherwise) against the Borrower
(and shall not have been dismissed within forty-five (45) days); or any judgment, writ,
warrant of attachment or execution or similar process shall be issued or levied against a
substantial part of the property of the Borrower (and shall not have been dismissed within
forty-five (45) days);

(g) determination by the Purchaser that any material representation or
warranty made by the Borrower or the Issuer herein, in the Tax Certificate, or in any other
document executed in connection herewith was untrue in any material respect when
made;

(h)  the occurrence of a default or an event of default under any instrument,
agreement or other document evidencing or relating to any indebtedness or other
monectary obligation of the Borrower (whether individually or in the aggregate) in an
amount greater than $100,000, so that a holder or trustee of such indebtedness is
empowered to accelerate such indebtedness;

(i) an Event of Taxability shall occur;

§)) any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein or in any
certificate, agreement, statement or document simultaneously herewith or hereafter
furnished to the Purchaser in connection herewith, including without limitation, any
financial information disclosed to the Purchaser, shall prove to be materially false or
incorrect in any material respect;

(k) the Borrower shall terminate its existence by merger, consolidation, sale of
substantially all of its assets or otherwise; or

(D any event of default or breach of any of the Borrower’s covenants or
obligations to the Purchaser or any of the Purchaser’s affiliates under any documents
evidencing or securing any other loans from the Purchaser to the Borrower.

The Borrower shall promptly notify the Purchaser and the Issuer of the occurrence
of any Event of Default or the occurrence or existence of any event or condition which,
upon the giving of notice of lapse of time, or both, may become an Event of Default.

Section 12.03. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing, the Purchaser may take any one or any combination of the
following remedial steps insofar as the same are available to mortgagees under Section
479 of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated (or successor statute) and/or
secured parties under Article 9 of the UCC in effect in the State from time to time and
which are otherwise accorded to the Purchaser by applicable law:
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(a) by notice to the Borrower and the Issuer, declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of the Bonds and the L.oan then outstanding, all interest accrued and
unpaid thereon and all amounts payable under this Agreement to be forthwith due and
payable, whereupon the Bonds and the Loan, all such accrued interest and all such
amounts shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, notice of
dishonor, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived
by the Borrower;

(b) proceed by appropriate court action to enforce specific performance by the
Issuer or the Borrower of the applicable covenants of this Agreement or to recover for the
breach thereof, including the payment of all amounts due from the Borrower. The
Borrower shall pay or repay to the Purchaser and the [ssuer all costs of such action or
court action, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees; and

(c) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable
to enforce its rights with respect to the Property. The Borrower shall pay or repay to the
Purchaser or the Issuer all costs of such action or court action, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees.

In addition, notwithstanding any contrary provision in this Agreement, the [ssuer
and its directors, officers, employees and agents shall have the right to take any action not
prohibited by law or make any decision not prohibited by law with respect to proceedings
for indemnity against the liability of such party and for collection or reimbursement of
moneys due to such party under this Agreement. The Issuer and its directors, officers,
employees and agents may enforce the Unassigned Rights by legal proceedings for the
specific performance of any obligation contained herein or for the enforcement of any
other legal or equitable remedy, and may recover damages caused by any breach bythe
Borrower of its obligations to the Issuer under this Agreement, including, without
lirnitation, any amounts required to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to Sections 4.03
and 14.01 hereof and court costs, reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs and expenses
incurred in enforcing such obligations.

Section 12.04. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or
reserved to the Issuer is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right
or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall
be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right or power may be exercised from
time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Issuer to
exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice other than such notice as may be required by this Agreement. All remedies herein
conferred upon or reserved to the Issuer shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 12.05. Late Charge. Any Debt Service Payment not paid by the Borrower
within fifteen (15) days of the due date thereof shall, to the extent permissible by law,
bear a late charge equal to the greater of ten percent (10.00%) or the One-Month LIBOR,
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plus eight percent (8.00%), and the Borrower shall be obiigated to pay the same
immediately upon receipt of the Purchaser's written invoice therefor.

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.01. Costs and Expenses of the Purchaser. The Borrower shall pay to
the Purchaser an upfront fee of one-quarter percent (1/4%) of the amount of the Loan, due
and payable at origination and shall pay such amounts in each year as shall be required by
the Purchaser in payment of any reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Purchaser
in connection with the execution, performance or enforcement of this Agreement,
including but not limited to payment of all reasonable fees, costs and expenses and all
administrative costs of the Purchaser in connection with the Property, the Bonds and the
Loan (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, fees of
auditors or attorneys, insurance premiums not otherwise paid hereunder and all other
direct and necessary administrative costs of the Purchaser or charges required to be paid
by it in order to comply with the terms of, or to enforce its rights under, this Agreement,
but not including general administrative or overhead expenses of the Purchaser). Such
costs and expenses shall be billed to the Borrower by the Purchaser from time to time,
together with a statement certifying that the amount so billed has been paid by the
Purchaser for one or more of the items above described, or that such amount is then
payable by the Purchaser for such items. Amounts so billed shall be due and payable by
the Borrower within thirty (30) days after receipt of the bill by the Borrower.

Section 13.02. Disclaimer of Warranties. THE PURCHASER AND THE
ISSUER MAKE NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR USE OF THE
PROPERTY, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT HERETO. In no event shall the Purchaser or the Issuer
be liable for any loss or damage in connection with or arising out of the Bonds, this
Agreement, the Property or the existence, furnishing, functioning or the Borrower’s use
of any item or products or services provided for in this Agreement.

Section 13.03. Notices. All notices, certificates, certifications, requests, demands

~ and other communications provided for hereunder or under the Borrower’s Tax

Certificate shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered, (b) sent by first class
United States mail, (c) sent by overnight courier of national reputation, or (d) transmitted
by telecopy, in each case addressed to the party to whom notice is being given at its
address as set forth above and, if telecopied, transmitted to that party at its telecopier
number set forth above or, as to each party, at such other address or telecopier number as
may hereafter be designated by such party in a written notice to the other party complying
as to delivery with the terms of this Section. All such notices, requests, demands and
other communications shall be deemed to have been given on (a) the date received if
personally delivered, (b) three (3) Business Days after deposit in the mail if delivered by
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mail, (c) the date sent if sent by overnight courier, or (d) the date of transmission if
delivered by telecopy. If notice to the Borrower of any intended disposition of the
Property or any other intended action 1s required by law in a particular instance, such
notice shall be deemed commercially reasonable if given (in the manner specified in this
Section) at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date of intended disposition or other
action.

Section 13.04. Further Assurance and Corrective Instruments. The Issuer and the
Borrower hereby agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and
deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such further acts,
instruments, conveyances, transfers and assurances, as the Purchaser reasonably deems
necessary or advisable for the implementation, correction, confirmation or perfection of
this Agreement or the Tax Certificate and any rights of the Purchaser hereunder or
thereunder.

Section 13.05. Binding Effect: Time of the FEssence. This Agreement shall inure
to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Purchaser, the Issuer, the Borrower and its
respective successors and assigns. Time is of the essence.

Section 13.06. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be
held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall
not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 13.07. Amendments. To the extent permitted by law, the terms of this
Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any
manner whatsoever except by written instrument signed by the parties hereto, and then
such waiver, consent, modification or change shall be effective only in the specific
instance and for the specific purpose given.

Section 13.08. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute
one and the same instrument, and any of the parties hereto may execute this Agreement
by signing any such counterpart.

Section 13.09. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 13.10. Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any
provisions or sections of this Agreement.

Section 13.11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Tax Certificate, and the
exhibits hereto and thereto constitute the entire agreement among the Purchaser, the
Issuer, and the Borrower. There are no understandings, agreements, representations or
warranties, express or implied, not specified herein or in such documents regarding this
Agreement or the Property financed hereby.
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Section 13.12. Usury. It is the intention of the parties hereto to comply with any
applicable usury laws; accordingly, it is agreed that, notwithstanding any provisions to the
contrary in this Agreement, in no event shall this Agreement require the payment or
permit the collection of interest or any amount in the nature of interest or fees in excess of
the maximum permitted by applicable law.

Section 13.13. Waiver of Jury Trial. THE PURCHASER, THE ISSUER AND
THE BORROWER HEREBY WAIVE ITS RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO A JURY TRIAL
OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF,
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, THIS AGREEMENT, ANY OF THE RELATED
DOCUMENTS, ANY DEALINGS AMONG THE PURCHASER, THE ISSUER OR
THE BORROWER RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THE
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED
TRANSACTIONS, AND/OR THE RELATIONSHIP THAT IS BEING ESTABLISHED
AMONG THE PURCHASER, THE ISSUER AND THE BORROWER. THE SCOPE
OF THIS WAIVER IS INTENDED TO BE ALL ENCOMPASSING OF ANY AND
ALL DISPUTES THAT MAY BE FILED IN ANY COURT (INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, CONTRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, BREACH OF DUTY CLAIMS
AND ALL OTHER COMMON LAW AND STATUTORY CLAIMS). THIS WAIVER
IS IRREVOCABLE, MEANING THAT IT MAY NOT BE MODIFIED EITHER
ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND THIS WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO ANY
SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, RENEWALS, SUPPLEMENTS OR
MODIFICATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT, ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS, OR TO
"ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED
TRANSACTIONS. IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE
FILED AS A WRITTEN CONSENT TO A TRIAL BY THE COURT.

Section 13.14. No Personal Liability or Accountability. No covenant, stipulation,
_ obligation or agreement contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenant, stipulation,
obligation or agreement of any present, past or future director, member, officer, agent or
employee of the Issuer in his or her individual capacity, and the directors, officers,
employees or agents of the Issuer and any official of the Issuer executing any of the
documents referred to in this sentence shall not be liable personally with respect to such
documents or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the
execution and delivery thereof.

Section 13.15. Termination. When all Debt Service Payments have been made in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement and all other amounts owed to the
Purchaser, or the Issuer or their respective directors, officers, employees and agents have
been paid or provided for to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and the Issuer, this
Agreement (but not the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 4.06 and any other provisions
which are to survive termination hereot) shall terminate and the Purchaser or the Issuer, at
the request and expense of the Borrower, shall execute such documents or instruments as
may be reasonably requested by the Borrower to defease any Lien created by the
Purchaser or the Issuer under this Agreement upon the Property.
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Section 13.16. Survival of Covenants, Ftc. All covenants, agreements,
representations and warranties made herein and in certificates delivered in connection
herewith shall be deemed to have been relied on by the Purchaser and the Issuer,
notwithstanding any investigation made by the Purchaser or the Issuer, or in their behalf,
and shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement until payment in full of the
Loan. All such covenants, agreements, representations and warranties shall be joint and
several obligations of the Borrower and bind and inure to the benefit of the Borrower’s
and the Purchaser's and the Issuer's successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.

Section 13.17. Indemnification of the Purchaser by the Borrower. The Borrower,
regardless of any agreement to maintain insurance, shall indemnify and save harmless, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, the Purchaser and its directors, officers, employees
and agents from and against (a) any and all claims by or on behalf of any person arising
out of (1) any condition of the Property, or (2) the acquisition, or operation of the
Property or any work or anything whatsoever done or omitted to be done on or about the
Property, or (3) any accident, injury or damage whatsoever to any person occurring on or
about the Property, or (4) any breach or default by the Borrower of or in any of its
obligations hereunder, or (5) any act or omission of the Borrower or any of its agents,
contractors, servants, employees or licensees, or (6) the offering, issuance, sale or any
resale of this Agreement or the Loan, but only to the extent permitted by law, and (b) any
and all costs, counsel fees, expenses or liabilities reasonably incurred in connection with
any such claim or any action or proceeding brought thereon. In case any action or
proceeding is brought against the Purchaser or any of its directors, officers, employees or
agents by reason of any such claim, the Borrower upon notice from the affected party
shall resist or defend such action or proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, the Purchaser
shall cooperate and join with the Borrower, at the expense of the Borrower, as may be
required in connection with any action or defense by the Borrower. This indemnification
shall survive the termination or defeasance of this Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in
their respective corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first
written above.

TD BANK, N.A. (“Purchaser™)

By:
Name:

Title:

BUSINESS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

By:
Name:

Title:

THW MONADNOCK COMMUNITY
HOSPTAL (“Borrower™)

Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT A

DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS



EXHIBIT B

PERMITTED LIENS

B-1



EXHIBIT C

BOND FORM

C-1



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO $28,000,000 BONDS
FOR REFUNDING OUTSTANDING BONDS OF
THE MONADNOCK COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
IN PETERBOROUGH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

WHEREAS, Monadnock Community Hospital (the “Hospital™) has by submission of
Form BFA-1 notified the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire (the
“Authority”) of its desire to refinance certain commercial facilities as described in Exhibit A
hereto (the “Facilities”) and has requested the Authority to issue one or more series of Variable
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds {(Monadnock Community Hospital Issue), Series 2013 (the
“Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $28,000,000 under RSA 162-1 (the
“Act™) and to loan the proceeds to the Hospital in order to refinance costs of the Projects to the
extent it qualifies as a “qualified 501(c)3 bond” within the meaning of Section 145(a) of the
Code;

WHEREAS, the Authority has been furnished with (a) information and materials about
the Hospital, the Projects and unemployment in the Peterborough area, (b) evidence that TD
Bank, N.A. (the “Bank™) is willing to purchase the Bonds, (¢) the proposed form of the
MORTGAGE, SECURITY, LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT among the Authority, the
Hospital, the Bank and People’s United Bank as trustee (the “Trustee™) which is a combined
financing and security document which will secure the Bonds (the “Agreement™), and (d) other
information, materials and assurances deemed relevant by the Authority;

IT 1S HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

Section 1. Findings. On the basis of the information, materials and assurances
received by the Authority and considered by it at an open meeting, the Authority finds:

(a) Special Findings:

(1) The Bonds will be used to: (i) current refund the outstanding Business
Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire Revenue Bond, The
Monadnock Community Hospital Issue (2009); (i) current refund the
outstanding Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, The Monadnock Community
Hospital Issue, Series 2007 and (ii) pay certain costs associated with the
issuance of the Bonds.

(2) The operation of the Tacilities will create and preserve employment
opportunities directly and indirectly within the State of New Hampshire
(the “State™).
(b} General Findings:

(1)  The Projects (as defined in Exhibit A hereto) and the proposed refinancing
thereof are feasible;



2) The Hospital has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate the
Facilities successfully;

3) The Agreement contains provisions so that under no circumstances will
the Authority be obligated directly or indirectly to pay Project costs, debt
service or expenses of operation, maintenance and upkeep of the Facilities
except from proceeds of the Bonds or from funds received under the
Agreement, exclusive of funds received thereunder by the Authority for its
OWD use;

(4)  The Agreement does not purport to create any debt of the State with
respect to the Facilities, other than a special obligation of the Authority
acting on behalf of the State under the Act; and

(5)  The proposed refinancing of the Projects by the Authority and the
operation and use of the Facilities will serve one or more needs and
implement one or more purposes set forth in RSA 162-1:1, will preserve or
increase the social or economic prosperity of the State and one or more of
its political subdivisions, and will promote the general welfare of the
State’s citizens.

Section 2. Determination and Recommendation. The Authority finds that the
proposed refinancing, operation and use of the Facilities will serve a public use and provide a
public benefit and determines that the Authority’s refinancing of the Projects will be within the
policy of, and the authority conferred by, the Act. The Autherity recommends to His Excellency
the Governor and The Honorable Council that they make findings and a determination similar to
those set forth above, and for that purpose the Executive Director is directed to transmit to the
Governor and Council copies of this resolution, the materials received by the Authority with
respect to the Projects and any other documentation and information the Governor and Council
may request,

Section 3. Authorization of the Apreement. The Authority shell be a party to the
Agreement, and the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and Executive Director are each
authorized to execute and deliver the Agreement on behalf of the Authority substantially in the
form presented to this meeting, but subject to such changes as the person so signing may
approve, his or her signature being conclusive identification of the documents as the Agreement
(with approved changes, if any) authorized by this resolution.

Section 4. Authorization and Sale of the Bonds. The Authority shall issue the
Monadnock Bonds in one or rore series in the aggregate amount of up to $28,000,000 as
provided in the Agreement; the Chairman, or the Vice Chairman, or the Treasurer, and any other
member of the Board or the Executive Director, are authorized to execute the Bonds by either
manual or facsimile signature; and the sale of the Bonds to the Bank al the price of par is hereby
authorized and approved.




€

Section 5. Actions Not to Be Taken Until After Approval by Governor and Couneil.
The actions authorized by Sections 3 and 4 above (meaning specifically the exccution of the
Agreement and the issuance of the Bonds), shall not be taken until such time as the Governor and
Council have made the findings and determination required by Section 9 of the Act, it being the
intent of the Authority that the various actions on its behalf which are authorized above are
subject to the action of the Governor and Council as required by the Act.

Section 6. Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited with the
Trustee in accordance with the Agreement, and checks, if any, for such Bond proceeds may be
appropriately endorsed by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer or the Executive Director.

Section 7. Approval of Projects, The establishment of the Projects, all in accordance
with the provisions of the Agreement, has been approved for the purposes of, and to the extent
required by, the Act by resolutions dated April 20, 2009 and October 31, 2007.

Section §. Other Actions by Cfficers. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and
the Executive Ditrector are each authorized to take all other actions and execute, deliver or
receive such instruments or certificates as they defermine are necessary on behalf of the
Authority in connection with the transactions authorized by the preceding sections of this
resolution, but subject in all events to Section 5 hereof. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, such officers may execute and deliver: receipts; financing statement forms under the
U.C.C.; certificates as to facts, estimates and circumstances; information returns for
governmental bond issues for the purposes of federal income taxes; and certificates as to
proceedings taken, incumbency of officers or any other facts for any other purposes.

Section 9. Discharge of Lien. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer or Executive
Director, whenever requested by the owners of the Bonds may join in the release and final
discharge of the lien of the Agreement.

Section 10.  Authorization of Change of Dates. Without limiting any other discretion
conferred in this resolution, the date of the Agreement and the date the Bonds are executed may
be any date or dates acceptable to the Hospital, the Bank and the officers of the Authority
executing such Agreement and the Bonds

Section 11,  Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

Attest:( ﬁ A1 / /

J aé Donovan, Clerk

Passed: November 19, 2012.




EXHIBIT A
List of Projects and Facilitics

Proceeds of the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire Variable Rate
Demand Hospital Revenue Bonds, The Monadnock Community Hospital Issue, Series 2007
were used to pay, or reimburse the Hospital for paying, a portion of the costs of acquiring,
constructing, renovating and equipping capital projects with respect to the Hospital’s health care
facilities, including: (&) construction of a new campus connector road, (b) major renovation
and/or construction of the hospital pharmacy, (¢) purchase of major moveable and imaging
equipment and furniture and fixtures, and (d) building renovations, including a major upgrade to
electrical systems and other mechanical upgrades, (collectively, the “2007 Project”). Proceeds of
the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire Revenue Bond, The Monadnock
Community Hospital Issue (2009) were used to pay for the construction of (a) a new emergency
room, (b) operating room expansion, (c) construction and renovation of clinic space and (d)
renovations to the obstetrical unit (collectively, the “2009 Project” and together with the 2007
Project the “Projects™). The Projects are owned and operated by the Hospitel and located at or
contiguous to the Hospital’s campus located at 452 Old Street Road, Peterborough, NH (3458,



SUMMARY OF REQUIRED STATUTORY FINDINGS OF THE
GOVERNOR AND COUNCIL UNDER RSA 162-1.

(The materials appearing in quotations below are extracts from RSA 162-1:9. Dots indicate deleted
provisions relating to matters which are not relevant to this transaction.)

* ¥ ok

Special Findings

“(1y  For any project, the governor and council shall specify the type of facility and shall find
that the project to be financed is within the definition of the (type of facility} and may be financed under
this chapter;”

The Bonds will be used to refinance certain projects to be owned and operated by The Monadnock
Community Hospital (the “Hospital”). The Bonds will be used to: (i) current refund the outstanding
Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire Revenue Bond, The Monadnock Community
Hospital Issue (2009) (the “Series 2009 Bonds™); (ii) current refund the outstanding Business Finance
Authority of the State of New Hampshire Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Monadnock
Community Hospital Issue) Series 2007 (the “Series 2007 Bonds™) and (iii) pay certain costs associated
with the issuance of the Bonds. The Project being refinanced is a “commercial facility” within the
meaning of RSA 162-1:2, 1l-a and may therefore be financed under the Act.

* * *

“(5)  If the facility is a commercial facility, the governor and council shall find that the
establishment and operation of the facility will either create or preserve employment opportunities
directly or indirectly within the state and will likely be of general benefit to the community as a
whole...”

When the Series 2007 Bonds and the Series 2009 Bonds were issued, The Monadnock Community
Hospital expected Project associated with them to coliectively preserve 520 existing jobs. This
refinancing will allow the jobs preserved by the Project to continue (Form BFA-1 under Tab #3). The
information from the New Hampshire Department of Employment Security (Tab #5) shows there is

unemployment in the Peterborough area.
* F F

General Findings

“For any project, the governor and council shall find that:
(1 The project and the proposed financing of the project are feasible;”

TD Bank, N.A. has agreed to purchase the Bonds in a direct placement (Tab #4). The financial
statements with respect to the Hospital also support the finding (Tab #3).

* F #



(2) “The proposed user has the skills and financial resources necessary to operate the facility
successfully;”

The Monadnock Community Hospital has assembled an experienced team of successful senior
administrators led by its President and Chief Executive Officer, Peter Gosline, who has many years of
experience in health care administration.

* * *

“(3)  The financing and security documents contain provisions so that under no circumstances
will the authority be obligated directly or indirectly to pay project costs, debt service or expenses of
operation, maintenance and upkeep of the facility except from bond proceeds or from funds received
under the financing or security documents, exclusive of funds received under the documents by the
authority for its own use;”

The proposed form of LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT for the Bonds (the “Agreement™) (Tab
#6) is a combined financing document and security document and contains an express statement to the
effect required. In addition, the Agreement obligates the Hospital to pay all debt service on its Bonds
when it is due and requires the Hospital to pay taxes and costs of operation, maintenance and upkeep.

* % ok

“(4)  Neither the financing document nor the security document purports to create any debt of
the state with respect to the facilities, other than a special obligation of the authority acting on behalf of
the state under this chapter; and”

Express language to this effect is found in the Agreement.

* ¥ %

“(5)  The proposed financing of the project by the authority and the proposed operation and
use of the facility will serve one or more needs and implement one or more purposes set forth in RSA
162-1: 1, will preserve or increase the social or economic prosperity of the state and one or more of its
political subdivisions, and will promote the general welfare of the state’s citizens.”

This finding can be based on all the materials as well as facts which are matters of general knowledge.

* % %

Ultimate Finding and Determination Required by the
First Paragraph of RSA 162-1:9

“.. . the proposed financing operation and use of the facility will serve a public use and provide a public
benefit and . . . the authority’s financing of the project will be within the policy of and the authority
conferred by, this chapter.”

The materials and information furnished and the preliminary findings described above support, and

enable the making of, the ultimate finding and determination.
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